
OMA Board of Directors Meeting 
March 4, 2022 | 4:30 p.m. – 6:30 p.m. 

Local Government Center 
1201 Court Street NE, Suite 200, Salem, OR 

Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89083012824?pwd=aFpUYWQ3WCtwV1p4MzY3ang2STAvQT09 

Meeting ID: 890 8301 2824 
Passcode: 649886 

One tap mobile 
+12532158782,,89083012824#,,,,*649886# US (Tacoma)
+13462487799,,89083012824#,,,,*649886# US (Houston)

Agenda Item D Will Be Discussed at 5:30 p.m. 

AGENDA 
A. Welcome & Roll Call (Jeff Gowing) …………………………………………………….………………………. -- 
B. Board Member Orientation (Jeff Gowing & Patty Mulvihill)……………………………………….. 1 
C. Consent Calendar* (Jeff Gowing) ……………………………………………………………………………….. -- 

1. Minutes of the December 3, 2021, OMA Board of Directors Meeting …………………… 
2. 2021 Financial Review – Budget vs. Actuals…………………………………………………………… 

12 
21 

D. 2022 Annual Summer Conference (Jeff Gowing, Dean Sawyer & Spencer Nebel)………… 24 
E. Houselessness & Livability Challenges for Cities* (Jeff Gowing and Ted Wheeler)……. 44 
F. Appointment to 2022 Committees* (Jeff Gowing)……………………………………………………… 64 
G. Membership Drive 2022 & 2022 Directory * (Patty Mulvihill)…………………………………….. 79 
H. Responses to RFP for 2023 & 2024 Summer Conference Locations* (Jeff Gowing)…….. 

1. Hood River…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
2. Klamath Falls…………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
3. Hermiston………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
4. Pendleton………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

80 
81 
97 

137 
139 

I. 2022 Budget* (Jeff Gowing)………………………………………………………………………………………… 145 
J. Resolution Establishing a Policy Regarding Third Party Requests for Information

Distribution* (Jeff Gowing)…………………………………………………………………………………………. 
152 

K. 2022 Spring Workshop, Travel Expense Approvals* (Jeff Gowing)……………………………… 154 
L. LOC Staffing Update (Patty Mulvihill)………………………………………………………………………….. 155 
M. Student Contest – Guidance for Students with No Participating City (Jeff Gowing)……. 157 
N. Feedback for LOC’s Strategic Planning Process (Patty Mulvihill)…………………………………. 158 
O. Other Business (Jeff Gowing) ……………………………………….…………………………………………….. 
P. Adjournment (Jeff Gowing) …………………………………….………………………………………………….. 

*Agenda items denoted with an asterisk indicate a motion is recommended. The sample motion will appear in the agenda item’s associated 
materials. 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89083012824?pwd=aFpUYWQ3WCtwV1p4MzY3ang2STAvQT09


T o  c o n v e n e ,  n e t w o r k ,  t r a i n ,  a n d  e m p o w e r  M a y o r s

1 2 0 1  Cour t  S t .  NE #2 0 0  ▪  SA L EM ,  OR EG ON 9 7 3 0 1  ▪  5 0 3 .5 8 8 .6 5 5 0  ▪  1 .8 0 0 .4 5 2 .0 3 3 8

TO: OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: BOARD MEMBER ORIENTATION 

DATE: FEBRUARY 21, 2022 

In October of 2021, the OMA Board of Directors created and developed a new Board member 
orientation program.  Because existing Board members had not gone through an orientation program, it 
was decided that during the first meeting of calendar year 2022, the full OMA Board of Directors would 
participate in the orientation program. 

Attached herein you’ll find the handouts associated with a Power Point presentation that will be given 
during the orientation. 

1

R e t u r n  t o  
A g e n d a



Oregon Mayors Association
New Board Member Orientation 2022

Agenda
• Welcome and Introductions

• Purpose of Today’s Orientation

• Overview of the Oregon Mayors Association

• Newsletter

• Board Expense/Reimbursement Policies

• 2022 Meetings and Events

• Relationship and Contract with the LOC

• Closing Remarks

Welcome & Introductions

1

2

3

2



Buddy System

Created to provide new 
Board members a go‐to 
member of the Board in 
case there are questions 
or concerns.

Existing Board 
Member

New Board 
Member

Jeff Gowing Teri Lenahan

Beth Wytoski Meadow Martell

Purpose of Today’s Orientation
Welcome new Board 

members to the OMA.

Promote cooperation 

and connections.

Provide information so that 

new Board members can be 

successful in their roles.

This Photo by Unknown Author  is licensed under CC BY

Overview

4

5

6

3



Purpose of the OMA
To increase the knowledge 

and ability of persons 
serving in the position of 
mayor in Oregon cities.

To promote the exchange 
of information and ideas 

among mayors.

To provide opportunities 
for mayors of Oregon cities 
to meet and discuss special 
functions of the office of 

mayor.

To provide strong, 
collective efforts for 

influencing state programs 
and legislation.

To further programs and 
objectives of the League of 

Oregon Cities by 
functioning as a recognized 

affiliate organization.

Purpose of the OMA
To increase the knowledge 

and ability of persons 
serving in the position of 
mayor in Oregon cities.

To promote the exchange 
of information and ideas 

among mayors.

To provide opportunities 
for mayors of Oregon cities 
to meet and discuss special 
functions of the office of 

mayor.

To provide strong, 
collective efforts for 

influencing state programs 
and legislation.

To further programs and 
objectives of the League of 

Oregon Cities by 
functioning as a recognized 

affiliate organization.

The Basics
• Founded in 1972

• Approximately ¾ of Oregon’s
mayors are members

• 9‐Member Board of Directors with
3 Officers

• LOC’s Executive Director serves as 
the Secretary/Treasurer

• LOC assigns a staff liaison to 
manage day‐to‐day operations

7

8

9

4



Board of Directors
Position Person

President Mayor Jeff Gowing

President‐Elect Mayor Teri Lenahan

Past President Mayor Beth Wytoski

Director #1 Mayor Jim Trett

Director #2 Mayor Jason Snider

Director #3 Mayor Rod Cross

Director #4 Mayor Carol MacInnes

Director #5 Mayor Henry Balensifer

Director #6 Mayor Meadow Martell

Board’s Role
• General supervision over all the affairs

of the Association.

• Operational policy direction.

• Budget adoption.

• Represents all Oregon mayors.

• Attends all major OMA events.

• Assist the LOC on its initiatives and
legislative priorities.

• Monitors legislative and 
administrative actions by state and
federal governments.

Board Logistics
• OMA Staff Liaison works with Board President prior to each 
meeting to establish an agenda and approve a Board packet.

• Board packets typically distributed 7 – 10 days in advance of
meeting.

• Board picks dates and locations of next year’s meetings in the 
Fall/Winter (in consultation with LOC staff).

• Meetings are either in‐person or virtual.  Reasonable travel
expenses covered by OMA for in‐person meetings.

• OMA Staff Liaison is currently Patty Mulvihill, LOC’s General
Counsel.  As of February 2022, Staff Liaison is Sara Zavala.

10

11

12

5



Governing Documents

Website & Listserv

Website
Information on Association

Identification of Board Members

Announces Upcoming Events

Membership Registrations

Conference Registrations

Newsletter Editions

Committee Information

Listserv
Only accessible to OMA Members

Used to Make Major OMA Announcements

Used by Mayors to Seek Advice, Guidance 

and Ideas from Other Mayors

OMA Membership Drive & Directory

Membership Drive
Begins in November/December Each Year

Goal is for Each Oregon Mayor to Join OMA

Board Members Actively Recruit Members

Directory
Identifies Every Oregon Mayor

Only Available to OMA Members

Typically Distributed in First Quarter of Each Year

13

14

15

6



OMA Committees

• Bylaws Committee

• Conference Planning Committee

• Mayors Leadership Award
Committee

• Nominating Committee

• Student Contest Selection
Committee

• Resource Committee

This Photo by Unknown Author  is licensed under CC BY‐NC‐ND

Bylaws Committee
• Ad‐Hoc Committee

• Any Board Member May
Volunteer

• Appointed by OMA President
with Board Approval

• Responsible for Reviewing & 
Recommending Updates to 
OMA’s Governing Documents

This Photo by Unknown Author  is licensed under CC BY‐SA

Conference Planning Committee
• Makeup Ranges Between 4‐9 
Members

• Any Member May Volunteer

• Appointed by OMA President
with Board Approval

• Responsible for Planning the 
Annual Summer Conference &
Allocating Scholarship Funds

16

17

18

7



Mayors Leadership 
Award Committee

• Makeup ranges between 3
to 5 members

• Appointed by the OMA 
President with the Board’s
approval

• Responsible for reviewing
nominations for the Mayors
Leadership Award and
selecting winners

Nominating Committee
• 5‐Member Committee

• Immediate Past President, 2 past OMA 
Presidents, and 2 OMA members who are not
past presidents and who do not serve on the 
Board

• Appointed by the President with the Board’s 
approval

• Review applications for open Board positions and 
develop a slate of candidates for the Board and
membership’s review and approval

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY

Student Contest 
Selection Committee

• Makeup ranges between 3 to 5
members

• Appointed by the President
with the Board’s approval

• Purpose is to review
submissions from If I Were a
Mayor Contest and determine
award winners

19

20

21

8



Resource Committee
• Makeup is not limited

• Appointed by the President with
the Board’s approval

• Oversees the development and 
distribution of a new mayor 
orientation program and identifies 
ways the OMA can be of better 
assistance to new mayors

This Photo by Unknown Author  is licensed under CC BY

OMA Newsletter
OMA publishes a Quarterly Newsletter

The Board selects a city 

to be spotlighted in each quarter

Board members develop 

the content of the Newsletter

Board members typically write 1‐3 articles 

for the various Newsletters each year

Board Expense Policy

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY‐ND

22

23

24

9



What Expenses are Paid by OMA?

OMA Pays OMA MAY Pay
OMA Pays 
(President)

Board 
Meetings

OMA Annual 
Conference

OMA Fall 
Workshop

Reimbursement Records
• Submitting for Reimbursement.  At each 

Board meeting, staff will provide a form.
These forms are due to staff within two 
business days from the date of the meeting.

• Ethics Reporting.  Within 10 calendar days
from the date of the Board meeting, staff will
distribute a summary of expenses paid by 
OMA.  These must be used for the annual 
Statement of Economic Interest (SEI).

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY‐NC‐ND

Looking Forward to 2022
Date Event Location

February 17, 2022 OMA Board Meeting Salem, Oregon

April 21, 2022 OMA Board Meeting Hermiston, Oregon

April 21, 2022 OMA Spring Workshop Hermiston, Oregon

April 22, 2022 LOC Spring Conference Hermiston, Oregon

August 11, 2022 OMA Board Meeting Newport, Oregon

August 12 – 13, 2022 OMA Summer Conference Newport, Oregon

October 4, 2022 OMA Board Meeting Bend, Oregon

October 5, 2022 OMA Fall Workshop Bend, Oregon

October 5, 2022 OMA Annual Membership Meeting Bend, Oregon

October 5 – 7, 2022 LOC Annual Conference Bend, Oregon

December 8, 2022 OMA Board Meeting Cottage Grove, Oregon

25

26

27

10



Relationship & Contract with the LOC
• The OMA is a recognized affiliate of the LOC

• The OMA contracts with the LOC for administrative support & management
services

o Designated staff person to assist the OMA in all its needs

o Conference planning and event services

o Financial and accounting services

28

29

11



Page 1 of 9 
OMA Board Meeting 12.3.2021 

OMA Board of Directors 
December 3, 2021  3:15 p.m. – 5:23 p.m. 

Evergreen Aviation & Space Museum, Space Museum 
510 NE Captain Michael King Smith Way 

McMinnville, OR 97128 

MINUTES 

Voting Board Members: 
Beth Wytoski, President – Present 
Jeff Gowing, Vice President – Present  
Steve Callaway, Past President–Present 
Jason Snider, Director – Present   

Henry Balensifer III, Director – Present 
Rod Cross, Director – Present   
Jim Trett, Director – Present  
Carol MacInnes, Director - Present 
Teri Lenahan, Director – Present  

Staff: 

Mike Cully, LOC Executive Director 
Patty Mulvihill, LOC General Counsel & OMA Staff Liaison 

A. Welcome & Roll Call 5:15 pm 

President Beth Wytoski called the meeting to order and acknowledged that all Board members, 
as well as LOC Executive Director Mike Cully, and LOC General Counsel and OMA Staff Liaison 
Patty Mulvihill, were present. 

B. Consent Calendar

It was moved by Mayor Henry Balensifer and seconded by Mayor Jim Trett to approve the 
consent calendar.  The motion passed unanimously (9 Yes [Wytoski, Gowing, Callaway, Snider, 
Balensifer, Cross, Trett, MacInnes, and Lenahan], 0 No, 0 Abstain, 0 Absent). 

The consent calendar included the minutes of the October 20, 2021, OMA Board of Directors 
Meeting, a copy of which can be found in the packet associated with the December 3, 2021, 
OMA Board of Directors meeting. 

C. Committee Updates

President Wytoski noted that there would be three Committee updates: an update on the 
solicitation process for 2022 OMA Committees; an update from the Conference Planning 
Committee; and an update from the Student Contest Committee. 

12

Return to 
Agenda



Page 2 of 9 
OMA Board Meeting 12.3.2021 

2022 OMA Committee Solicitation 

Patty Mulvihill advised that applications for persons interested in serving on 2022 OMA 
Committees are now being accepted.  Applications began being accepted on November 1, 
2021.  Reminder emails have been, or will be, shared on the OMA listserv on the following 
dates:  November 22, 2021; December 17, 2021; January 14, 2022; and January 31, 2022.  Patty 
Mulvihill further advised that in addition to the five mayors described in the memorandum 
associated with this agenda item who have submitted applications for Committee 
appointments, two additional applications have been received, one from Mayor Koontz of 
Monmouth and a second from Mayor McArdle of Independence.   

Mayor Wytoski noted that OMA Board members do not need to apply themselves, rather they 
can volunteer for committees during the February 2022 Board meeting when committee 
appointments are assigned. 

A copy of a memorandum related to the 2022 OMA Committee Solicitation can be found in the 
packet associated with the December 3, 2021, OMA Board of Directors meeting.  

Conference Planning Committee 

President Wytoski noted that the session topic and speaker for the upcoming Spring Workshop 
in Hermiston will be the same as what had originally been planned for the Fall 2021 Workshop 
that was cancelled due to COVID-19.  She further noted that she has a verbal confirmation from 
the speaker, but is still working to solidify that commitment. 

Patty Mulvihill advised that she needs direction from the Board on what to charge for attending 
the Spring Workshop.  After careful discussion, the OMA Board decided the registration fee 
should be $75.00 per attendee, with one caveat.  Any new member of the OMA can register for 
the conference for free.  The OMA Board was also committed to providing scholarships to 
attend the Workshop. 

A copy of a memorandum related to the Conference Planning Committee update can be found 
in the packet associated with the December 3, 2021, OMA Board of Directors meeting 

13



Page 3 of 9 
OMA Board Meeting 12.3.2021 

Student Contest Committee 

Patty Mulvihill advised that the 2022 If I Were a Mayor Contest officially kicked off on August 
13, 2021, with a submission deadline of April 8, 2022.  She further advised that LOC staff will 
send out monthly reminders of the contest on the OMA listserv, and that the Oregon School 
Boards Association has shared the contest information with their membership.  Mayors 
Balensifer, Cross and Snider all noted that they work directly with their local schools to 
advertise the contest.  Mayor Gowing advised that the Cottage Grove Youth Council advertises 
the contest, and the city has found their efforts the most impactful.   

A copy of a memorandum related to the Student Contest Committee update can be found in 
the packet associated with the December 3, 2021, OMA Board of Directors meeting. 

D. Membership Drive 2022

Patty Mulvihill advised the Board of the general process for handling the 2022 Membership 
Drive.  She further noted that Board members had previously asked to be provided a list of 
mayors to individually contact to encourage their participation in the association.  After careful 
discussion, it was decided that only those current Board members who will remain on the 
Board in 2022 will be responsible for contacting mayors, and that as much as reasonably 
possible, their list of mayors should be regionalized.   

A copy of a memorandum related to the Membership Drive 2022 can be found in the packet 
associated with the December 3, 2021, OMA Board of Directors meeting. 

E. Mission Statement

President Wytoski explained that she and Mayor Lenahan believe the OMA needs a mission 
statement.  She further advised that both her and Mayor Lenahan did some research on 
mission statements, and ultimately proposed one that succinctly restates the five main 
purposes of the OMA.  The proposed mission statement is:  “To convene, network, train, and 
empower Mayors.” 

It was moved by Mayor Cross and seconded by Mayor Lenahan to adopt the recommended 
mission statement.  The motion passed unanimously (9 Yes [Wytoski, Gowing, Callaway, Snider, 
Balensifer, Cross, Trett, MacInnes, and Lenahan], 0 No, 0 Abstain, 0 Absent). 

14



Page 4 of 9 
OMA Board Meeting 12.3.2021 

A copy of a memorandum related to the Mission Statement can be found in the packet 
associated with the December 3, 2021, OMA Board of Directors meeting. 

F. Third Party Request for Distribution of Materials

President Wytoski noted that she was contacted by Patty Mulvihill regarding the process the 
LOC should use when it receives a request from a third party to distribute materials to OMA 
members.  Patty Mulvihill noted that she could not locate a policy related to such requests.   

Mayor Balensifer noted that distributing third party materials is not a good idea and Mayor 
Snider noted that the OMA could get a request from a similarly situated body, like the OSBA, 
where it might make sense to distribute the materials.  Mayor Lenahan noted that the 
distribution, if its allowed, should be limited to materials that match the OMA mission 
statement and the purposes of the association.  Mayor Trett advised that the request should 
also have to come from a recognized source.   

After a robust discussion it was decided that thirty party requests for the distribution of 
materials should be submitted to the President who has the authority to decide if distribution is 
appropriate or not, provided the President’s decision is made with the OMA mission statement 
and purpose in mind.  The President will retain the right to seek the opinions and consensus of 
the Board if they are unclear as to how to proceed with a particular request. 

The Board asked Patty Mulvihill to prepare a simple policy on third-party requests, based on the 
above guidance, and share it with the Board during its February 2022 meeting. 

Patty Mulvihill was directed to contact the person making the most recent request for material 
distribution and advise said person the OMA declined her request. 

A copy of a memorandum related to Third Party Request for Distribution of Materials can be 
found in the packet associated with the December 3, 2021, OMA Board of Directors meeting. 

G. Board Travel Expenses

Patty Mulvihill noted that as she was preparing the draft 2022 Budget she noted that there may 
be a need to increase the line associated with Board travel expenses; as mayors from  

15



Page 5 of 9 
OMA Board Meeting 12.3.2021 

smaller cities join the OMA Board, it may be prudent for the Board to assume that their travel 
expenses may need to be covered by the Association.  The Board discussed the importance of 
ensuring that all Oregon Mayors feel comfortable joining the Board and the cost of attending 
Board meetings should not detract persons from joining the Board.  Mayors Balensifer and Trett 
spoke on the types of expenses their cities can and cannot pay.  Mayor Lenahan noted that as 
the Board seeks to be more inclusive and representative of the state, it needs to ensure it treats 
all Mayors equitably.  Mayor Snider noted that if the Board covers these costs, all application 
materials for Board positions needs to make this clear. 

Ultimately, after a lengthy discussion wherein all Board members agreed that travel expenses 
should be provided, the Board directed Patty Mulvihill to increase the amount of money placed 
in the Board Travel Expense line for the 2022 budget. 

A copy of a memorandum related to Board Travel Expenses can be found in the packet 
associated with the December 3, 2021, OMA Board of Directors meeting. 

H. 2022 Draft Budget

Patty Mulvihill reviewed the 2022 Draft Budget with the OMA Board of Directors, asking specific 
questions and receiving direct feedback from the Board so that the final draft can be properly 
prepared and presented to the Board during its February 2022 meeting.  Board feedback 
directed Patty Mulvihill to do the following: 

• Budget for coffee, tea, pastries and fruit for the Spring Workshop;
• Budget no more than $5,000 for a keynote speaker during the Summer Conference;
• Budget no more than $2,000 for a presenter/speaker during the Fall Workshop;
• Budget as recommended for the new mayors training held in coordination with the LOC Elected

Essentials training program; and
• Budget at least $3,000 to begin reprinting hard copy editions of the OMA Newsletter in 2022.

A copy of a memorandum related to the 2022 Draft Budget can be found in the packet 
associated with the December 3, 2021, OMA Board of Directors meeting. 

16



Page 6 of 9 
OMA Board Meeting 12.3.2021 

I. Mayor’s Leadership Award

Patty Mulvihill explained that during the October Board of Directors meeting she was directed 
to prepare a resolution establishing the criteria for receipt of the Mayor’s Leadership Award.  
She then summarized the draft resolution. 

Mayors Wytoski and MacInnes noted that the resolution should be adopted by the Board, not 
the membership – noting that the Board was elected to make decisions such as these.  Mayors 
Cross and Lenahan advised that the nomination process and announcements need to make it 
clear that a mayor can be nominated for the Award by anyone, they do not have to be 
nominated by their own city, or a person representing their own city.  Mayors Snider, Wytoski 
and Lenahan noted that if there are any complaints about the process and criteria outlined in 
the resolution, the OMA Board will address those complaints as they arise. 

It was moved by Mayor Balensifer and seconded by Mayor Trett to adopt Resolution 2021-1, 
which established the criteria and process for the Mayor’s Leadership Award.  The motion 
passed unanimously (9 Yes [Wytoski, Gowing, Callaway, Snider, Balensifer, Cross, Trett, 
MacInnes, and Lenahan], 0 No, 0 Abstain, 0 Absent). 

A copy of the resolution, as well as a memorandum related to the resolution, can be found in 
the packet associated with the December 3, 2021, OMA Board of Directors meeting. 

J. Other Business

There was a series of items discussed under other business. 

2022 Board of Directors Meetings – Travel Arrangements 

Patty Mulvihill advised that she still needs to confirm with members who needs hotel rooms for 
which meetings, she noted that in the case of the December meeting, there are already limited 
hotel rooms available at the desired location.  Mayors advised Patty Mulvihill of their hotel 
needs and she noted that reservations would be made shortly. 

17



Page 7 of 9 
OMA Board Meeting 12.3.2021 

2022 First Quarter Newsletter 

Patty Mulvihill advised that the Board needs to identify articles for the 2022 First Quarter 
Newsletter.   

• City Spotlight will be the city of Gates.  Mayor Trett will contact the Gates Mayor to see if he is
interested in writing the article; Patty Mulvihill advised that she can help the Gates Mayor with
the article if necessary.

• Mayor Balensifer will write an article on the importance of understanding parliamentary rules
and practices.

• Mayor Cross will write an article on sharing resources with other governmental entities and
community partners.

• Patty Mulvihill will ensure that all Board members, and their respective bios, are included in the
Newsletter, with a focus on non-traditional biographic information.

• Patty Mulvihill will write an article on mutual aid agreements and the types of items that should
be included in said agreements.

• President Wytoski volunteered to write an article, with assistance from Mayor Snider, on the
importance of mayors developing solid relationships with their city managers.  The article will
include information on recruiting and retaining the right city manager.

The Board noted that the City Spotlight for Quarter 2 should be the city of Newport since it’s 
hosting the Summer Conference. 

RFP for 2023 and 2024 Annual Summer Conference 

Patty Mulvihill advised that she, with President Wytoski’s consent, extended the deadline for 
cities to submit a response to the RFPs for the 2023 and 2024 Annual Summer Conference.  
Several cities had contacted Patty Mulvihill and advised the deadline was too tight for them to 
submit a proposal.  The new deadline is February 17, 2022, with proposals being reviewed at 
the February Board meeting. 

Newport’s Invitation to February Board Meeting 

Patty Mulvihill was asked to invite the city manager and Mayor of Newport to the February 
Board meeting so that preliminary conversations regarding the 2022 Summer Conference can 
begin. 

18



Page 8 of 9 
OMA Board Meeting 12.3.2021 

Ethics Reports 

Patty Mulvihill explained that she will be sending everyone an ethics report after this meeting 
to ensure compliance with certain ORS provisions.  The purpose of the report is to advise 
elected officials of any travel expenses or meal costs incurred by the OMA on behalf of the 
elected official. 

Staffing 

Patty Mulvihill advised that the recruitment for the Project Coordinator-Affiliates position was 
unsuccessful.  This is the position that is the primary staff liaison for the OMA.  Given that the 
recruitment was unsuccessful, Mike Cully has advised that it is likely that Patty Mulvihill will 
continue as the OMA staff liaison through the 2022 OMA Summer Conference.  LOC is working 
to identify how best to recruit for the permanent position since its attempts thus far have been 
unsuccessful.   

NLC Appointment 

Mike Cully advised that Past President Steve Callaway has been appointed to the National 
League of Cities Board of Directors. 

Final Meeting for Past President Callaway 

Today’s meeting was the final meeting for Past President Callaway.  He expressed his sincere 
appreciation for the OMA and the Board of Directors.  Past President Callaway noted that he 
will miss working on this Board, attending the meetings, and being with his colleagues; but, that 
he will continue to be a member of the OMA and advocate for the Association.  All other Board 
members expressed their thanks for Past President Callaway’s service on the Board, expressing 
all the ways in which he has helped them personally and helped the Association. 

K. Adjournment

President Wytoski adjourned the December 3, 2021, meeting at 5:23 pm. 

19



Page 9 of 9 
OMA Board Meeting 12.3.2021 

APPROVED by the Oregon Mayors Association Board of Directors on February 17, 2022. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia M. Mulvihill
LOC Interim Executive Director 

Jeff Gowing 
President 

20



T o  c o n v e n e ,  n e t w o r k ,  t r a i n ,  a n d  e m p o w e r  M a y o r s

1 2 0 1  Cour t  S t .  NE #2 0 0  ▪  SA L EM ,  OR EG ON 9 7 3 0 1  ▪  5 0 3 .5 8 8 .6 5 5 0  ▪  1 .8 0 0 .4 5 2 .0 3 3 8

TO: OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: 2021 FINANCIAL REVIEW – BUDGET VS. ACTUALS 

DATE: FEBRUARY 15, 2022 

The final accounting of the 2021 OMA finances has been completed by the LOC Finance Director; 
while the goals outlined in the adopted budget were not wholly met, there were no significant deviations.  
A brief summary of lines of interest is below: 

• Membership Dues.  The OMA’s membership drive in 2021 was not as successful as previous
years, which resulted in receiving $4,280 less in membership dues revenue than anticipated.

• Silent Auction.  The Silent Auction was a record breaker in 2021, resulting in $3,610 more
revenue than anticipated.

• Spring Workshop.  OMA had not planned to hold a Spring Workshop, but in co-hosting with the
LOC, the OMA received $12,288.17 in unexpected revenue.

• Summer Conference.  The Annual Summer Conference saw more revenue than anticipated from
registration fees, but the expenses associated with the conference also were higher than
anticipated.  Overall the deviations were not significant.

• Sponsorships.  The OMA secured more generous sponsorship dollars in 2021, resulting in $9,750
more revenue than anticipated.

• General Operating Expenses. While some operating expenses were higher than anticipated,
printing the OMA Directory for example, other expenses were less than expected.  The overall
difference between what was budgeted and what was spent was not significant.

21

R e t u r n  t o  
A g e n d a



Oregon Mayors Association
Budget vs. Actuals 2021

January - December 2021

Accrual Basis  Sunday, February 13, 2022 02:42 PM GMT-08:00

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET REMAINING

Income

4-4001 Membership Dues 17,720.00 22,000.00 4,280.00

4-4660 Silent Auction 6,310.00 2,700.00 -3,610.00

4-4700 OMA Spring Workshop 12,288.17 -12,288.17

4-4753 Fall Workshop 5,500.00 5,500.00

4-4754 Summer Conference 31,401.00 25,000.00 -6,401.00

4-4760 Mayor's Sponsors 21,750.00 12,000.00 -9,750.00

General Fund

4-4755 Scholarship Fund 1,200.00 1,200.00

Beginning Cash 75,308.00 75,308.00

Beginning Scholarship Fund 10,672.00 10,672.00

Total General Fund 87,180.00 87,180.00

Total Income $89,469.17 $154,380.00 $64,910.83

GROSS PROFIT $89,469.17 $154,380.00 $64,910.83

Expenses

4-5000 Cost of Events

4-5301 OMA Summer Conference

4-5307 Venue Rental 24,239.10 21,800.00 -2,439.10

4-5310 Activity Fees 4,316.59 800.00 -3,516.59

4-5313 Speakers 10,118.16 5,000.00 -5,118.16

4-5314 Postage / Printing 421.20 1,000.00 578.80

4-5318 Transportation 315.04 500.00 184.96

4-5390 Conference Scholarships 3,990.85 26,750.00 22,759.15

Total 4-5301 OMA Summer Conference 43,400.94 55,850.00 12,449.06

4-5400 Fall Workshop 5,000.00 5,000.00

4-5407 Speakers Fall Workshop 5,000.00 5,000.00

Total 4-5400 Fall Workshop 10,000.00 10,000.00

Total 4-5000 Cost of Events 43,400.94 65,850.00 22,449.06

4-6000 Operating Expenses

4-6013 Directory 1,342.28 500.00 -842.28

4-6017 LOC Services 25,000.00 25,750.00 750.00

4-6018 Mayor's Board Expense 2,166.28 2,500.00 333.72

4-6023 Mayor's Contest 2,895.21 3,500.00 604.79

4-6025 Miscellaneous 1,917.48 600.00 -1,317.48

4-6028 Newsletter 2,500.00 2,500.00

4-6030 Postage 231.91 1,000.00 768.09

4-6031 Copy, Fax, Printing 100.00 100.00

22



Oregon Mayors Association
Budget vs. Actuals 2021

January - December 2021

Accrual Basis  Sunday, February 13, 2022 02:42 PM GMT-08:00

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET REMAINING

4-6033 Supplies / Marketing 816.07 1,000.00 183.93

4-6040 WEB 3,100.00 4,500.00 1,400.00

4-6041 Listserv 750.00 750.00 0.00

Total 4-6000 Operating Expenses 38,219.23 42,700.00 4,480.77

Total Expenses $81,620.17 $108,550.00 $26,929.83

NET OPERATING INCOME $7,849.00 $45,830.00 $37,981.00

NET INCOME $7,849.00 $45,830.00 $37,981.00

23



T o  c o n v e n e ,  n e t w o r k ,  t r a i n ,  a n d  e m p o w e r  M a y o r s

1 2 0 1  Cour t  S t .  NE #2 0 0  ▪  SA L EM ,  OR EG ON 9 7 3 0 1  ▪  5 0 3 .5 8 8 .6 5 5 0  ▪  1 .8 0 0 .4 5 2 .0 3 3 8

TO: OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON AND LOC INTERIM 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: 2022 ANNUAL SUMMER CONFERENCE 

DATE: FEBRUARY 1, 2022 

The OMA Summer Conference is being held between August 11 and August 13 at the Best 
Western Plus Agate Beach Inn in Newport, Oregon.  LOC staff has identified an ideal 
schedule for planning and executing the Conference successfully, a copy of that timeline is 
attached to this Memorandum.  The first two immediate steps include establishing the 2022 
Conference Planning Committee and beginning conversations with the city of Newport – 
both of which will occur during the March 4, 2022, OMA Board of Directors meeting. 

Additionally, for ease of reference, when the OMA Board met in October, it reviewed the 
evaluations of the 2021 Summer Conference in North Bend, recommendations from the 
2021 Conference Planning Committee, and some attending the October meeting provided 
additional feedback.  Attached herein you will find: 

1. Evaluation of the 2021 Summer Conference;
2. Recommendations from the 2021 Conference Planning Committee
3. Relevant portions of the minutes from the October 20, 2021, OMA Board of

Directors meeting; and
4. Newport's winning submission submitted as a result of the OMA RFP.

Please know that the three above documents will be provided to the 2022 Conference 
Planning Committee during its first meeting, and any subsequent meetings wherein the 
materials will be relevant and useful. 

24

R e t u r n  t o  
A g e n d a



OMA 2022 Conference Planning Timeline 

FEBRUARY 
2/23 Session topic proposals DUE from membership 

March 
3/4 OMA Board of Directors meeting – Planning Committee assigned 
End of Summer Conference Planning Committee Meeting   

APRIL 
4/1 Leadership Awards announced 
4/8 “If I Were Mayor” local winning submissions DUE to OMA 
4/21 OMA Board of Directors meeting  
End of Save-the-Date electronically distributed with scholarship information 
End of Summer Conference Planning Committee Meeting 

MAY 
Mid Student Contest Selection Committee Meeting at LOC offices 
Mid  “If I Were Mayor” statewide winners announced 
05/20 SESSION LEADS: Titles & Descriptions DUE 
Mid  Conference Planning Meeting 
5/27 Nominations for leadership awards DUE 
5/30 Summer Conference registration opens   
5/30 SESSION LEADS: Speakers DUE 

JUNE 
Beginning Conference Planning Meeting 
Beginning Leadership Awards Committee Conference Call- 
Mid  Summer Conference Planning Committee Meeting 

JULY 
7/15 Sponsorships DUE  
7/15 Fall Workshop registration open  
Mid  Summer Conference Hotel reservations cut-off 
7/22 SESSION LEADS: A/V Needs DUE 
7/23 Last Day for cancellations with refund 

AUGUST 
8/1 SESSION LEADS: Handouts, PowerPoints, etc. DUE 
8/11-13 Summer Conference 
8/13 Leadership Awards announced at Awards Dinner 
8/17 Conference evaluations distributed electronically 

SEPTEMBER 
9/30 OMA Q3 Newsletter recognizes summer conference sponsors 

OCTOBER 
10/5 Fall Workshop 
10/12 Fall Workshop evaluations distributed electronically 

25



2021 OMA Summer Conference Evaluation
August 30th 2021 

Q1 - Rate the degree to which you agree with the following statement: "The conference 

was useful."

# Answer % Count 

1 Strongly Agree 69.77% 30 

2 Agree 30.23% 13 

3 Nuetral 0.00% 0 

4 Disagree 0.00% 0 

5 Strongly Disagree 0.00% 0 

Total 100% 43 

26



Q6 - Any general comments about the conference?

Any general comments about the conference? 

COVID makes coordinating these conferences very difficult.  One must make allowances for the handicaps this 
imposes on all concerned. 

well done 

The opportunity to network and share experiences with certain challenges was invaluable. 

I was disappointed that OMA booked a place that had indoor smoking during a global pandemic. I would hope in the 
future this would be a consideration for guests that have health problems or may be pregnant. 

Good variety of sessions 

well planned. very timely topics. plenty of visiting / networking time which we desperately needed after 2020. 

Conference was well planned out.  There was many useful topics. 

Good to see some familiar faces again. 

One of the best ones so far 

As a First Timer this year, it may have been an easier experience if prior to the conference there could have been a 
"mentor" that could have helped with questions.  Such as, was this a "semi-formal" conference as I didn't know what 
to pack so I packed for both and extremely glad to see everyone was in comfortable attire.  Everyone was friendly 
and helpful once at the conference.  Just to have maybe someone reach out before to see if there are any questions.  
Great conference and a lot of information to absorb.  Love the Networking Directory.  Looking forward to seeing 
new friends in Bend in October and in Newport next year.  Thank you. 

Always good to visit with other Mayors. All said the past 18 months have been stressful on staff and Mayors. Council 
members and the public dont know the role and responsibility not to mention the work supporting community 
efforts that has been required. 

As a first timer, I found it very useful. I really needed the breakout sessions to learn about specific topics and I also 
very much needed the networking component. 

I appreciate all the time and attention put into making this Mayors Conference a successful and memorable event. 

Some of the session topics were not covered to the extent intended because of the open discussion that ensued 
after open forums were invited after introducing the first bullet point.  The entirety of the sessions were filled with 
mayors talking about various related and unrelated topics.  This was unfortunate. 

Best Conference Ever! 

The entire format made for an enjoyable weekend in Coos Bay and North Bend.  Learned so much at the breakout 
sessions and the tours of the Cities were very helpful. 

Two things: One, Mayors need to remind themselves that there has been time and talent expended for the 
presentation of the workshops.  It would be helpful if we would be reminded of that and hold our 
questions/comments until the end of the presentations.  Watching people get two slides presented and then having 
their program hijacked is not a pleasant experience.  And there was some criticism of Mayor Callaway’s presentation 
at the “If I Were Mayor” luncheon, when he referred to the history of Coos Bay, and the recognition by that city of 
the lynching of a black man many years ago.  As a state, as a society, indeed as caring, compassionate people, we 
need to recognize that our past is sometimes reprehensible, and we need to be honest with ourselves. 

I’d like to see more defined networking time. 

27



So much positive energy from most, not all 

It was great to be together again. 

  

28



Q2 - Please evaluate the following sessions:

29



# Question Excellent Good Average Poor 
Did Not 
Attend 

Total 

1 
Newcomer's Orientation 

(Thurs. 1:00 pm) 
25.64% 10 25.64% 10 5.13% 2 2.56% 1 41.03% 16 39 

2 
Mayoral Powers & Duties - 

Governing 101 (Fri. 9 am) 
23.08% 9 25.64% 10 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 51.28% 20 39 

3 
Mayoral Obligations in Times 

of Dysfunction - Governing 
201 (Fri. 9 am) 

21.62% 8 32.43% 12 0.00% 0 2.70% 1 43.24% 16 37 

4 
Mayors Collaborating with 

Mayors (Fri. 10 am) 
60.00% 24 25.00% 10 10.00% 4 0.00% 0 5.00% 2 40 

5 
Keynote Speaker - Bertony 

Faustin (Fri. 11:45 pm) 
53.66% 22 26.83% 11 12.20% 5 4.88% 2 2.44% 1 41 

6 
Tips for Successful Mayor 

Appointments - Governing 
201 (Fri. 1:15 pm am) 

14.29% 5 34.29% 12 5.71% 2 0.00% 0 45.71% 16 35 

7 

Writing & Reviewing Council 
Rules of Procedule - 

Governing 201 (Fri. 1:150 
pm) 

20.51% 8 28.21% 11 5.13% 2 0.00% 0 46.15% 18 39 

8 
Mayors Roundtables: Small, 

Medium & Large City 
Discussions (Fri. 2:15 pm) 

63.41% 26 21.95% 9 9.76% 4 4.88% 2 0.00% 0 41 

9 
Self-Care Given the Mayoral 

Role (Sat. 9 am) 
14.29% 5 20.00% 7 8.57% 3 0.00% 0 57.14% 20 35 

10 
Build Your Leadership 

Network (Sat. 9 pm) 
23.68% 9 28.95% 11 5.26% 2 2.63% 1 39.47% 15 38 

11 
Legislative Update (Sat. 10 

am) 
22.50% 9 30.00% 12 17.50% 7 17.50% 7 12.50% 5 40 

12 
The Changing Landscape of 

Public Engagement (Sat. 1 
pm) 

30.56% 11 19.44% 7 5.56% 2 0.00% 0 44.44% 16 36 

13 
Addressing Homelessness - 

What Mayors Need to Know 
(Sat. 1 pm) 

34.29% 12 14.29% 5 2.86% 1 0.00% 0 48.57% 17 35 

14 
Mayors Open Forum (Sat. 3 

pm) 
50.00% 19 28.95% 11 5.26% 2 2.63% 1 13.16% 5 38 

30



Q4 - Any comments about the conference sessions?

Any comments about the conference sessions? 

The Legislative update was particularly disorganized this year.  The speakers made too many assumptions about how 
tuned in the average mayor is to the details and culture of their very arcane discipline.  The consequence was that 
there was a boatload of information presented to us but very few clear takeaways. 

fewer sessions, longer engagement 

I suggest more time for each session to allow for more discussion. 

It would be great to have other who are not on the executive leadership teaching. There is a lot of talent in the 
mayors network, perhaps ask for speakers after the topic is set. 

The session on self care was new and absolutely essential after the trauma of 2020 and, for some of us, continuing 
that trauma into 2021. Thank you for inviting me to be part of the panel on housing and homelessness. Every session 
was practical. 

They were ALL very informative.  The presenters kept their subjects interesting. 

I always enjoy the round table discussions, learning from someone else's experience and mistakes is great. 

The Changing Landscape of Public Engagement and the Addressing Homelessness sessions on Saturday were both 
topics that I felt I needed, but were scheduled at the same time. Wish those could have been at different times. 

I was able to take away valuable information from conference sessions and round tables. 

Very good variety. Well planned and moderated. 

I felt that this year its was really worth my time all topics where very useful and timely. 

Legislative update was a bit dry...like listening to Ben Stein. Have a bit more visuals in presentation and cover more 
stuff in a shorter bit. 

Everyone I attended was helpful to our small City!!! 

Again, remind us that we have people who have volunteered or accepted requests to present and they deserve our 
courtesy and attention. 

I always pick up something useful in these sessions. 

All I attended were good, sometimes I wanted to attend both. 

All sessions were good. I would like to see more written materials. 

31



Q7 - What would you like to hear about next year? Please list session topic ideas for 

OMA's Conference Planning Committee as they prepare for the 2022 Summer Conference 

August 11-14 in Newport. 

 

What would you like to hear about next year? Please list session topic ideas for OMA's Conference Planning 
Committee as they prepare for the 2022 Summer Conference August 11-14 in Newport. 

COVID after action (hopefully) report.  Impacts and lessons learned.  What did we do well and what did we do not so 
well. Always like to hear the latest science on Cascadia. 

Finance and Infrastructure 

(1) Challenges in dealing with Social Media. Patty Mulvihill started a good discussion but time ran out.  (2) Disaster / 
Emergency Planning for small cities. How to avoid the chaos of rush evacuation. 

crisis leadership, thinking outside the box on getting things done, working with county and state leadership. 

Budgeting, economic development and staffing resources via regional collaboration. No one has to have it all. 
Diversity and and inclusion in action - being the convener for conversations that are not about policy but community 
character. More on self care and Council and community emotional care - emotional intelligence without the drama. 

Some of the Break Out Sessions that ran at the same time were hard to choose which to attend so maybe offer them 
again.  Self-Care Given the Mayoral Role is always important i.e. Family Life vs Mayor Role. 

Regional networking session, group the mayors by region to be able to discuss regional issues. 

I appreciated the tours and conversations regarding the needs of the communities we visited.  It was interesting to 
hear of the trials and tribulations with new projects and how they worked through issues and ultimately had 
successful outcomes. 

Skills building workshops, informational workshops for timely and priority topics, workshops that on important 
topics that are relevant for most mayors.  Council rules and guidelines, dysfunctional councils, the role of URAs in 
economic development, economic opportunities for small communities (examples), models of behavior for mayors 
(what kind of roles do mayors fill?  What is the range of involvement and active management strategies? What are 
other mayors doing?) 

I heard Planning Commissions mentioned in several sessions and think it should be the focus of a session next year. 

Continued updates on affordable housing and homelessness. 

It’s an election year and how will we navigate what could be a very rocky, partisan and ill-tempered landscape.  How 
do we maintain civility in a potentially uncivil environment?  We owe it to our residents, and to ourselves. 

More size related topics, for example specifically for city size. 

It would be nice if the governor's staff could make it next year. 

revenue sources 

ARPA 

Continue with subjects on council development 

  

32



Q3 - Please evaluate the two tours. 

 
 

 

# Question Excellent  Good  Average  Poor  
Did Not 
Attend 

 Total 

1 
Coos Bay Tour - Urban 

Renewal 
33.33% 13 25.64% 10 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 41.03% 16 39 

2 
North Bend Tour - Urban 

Renewal 
41.03% 16 17.95% 7 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 41.03% 16 39 

  

33



Q5 - Any comments about the conference tours?

Any comments about the conference tours? 

They were good.  The sound system on the bus was not adequate to the task. 

I missed the tour they left early 

It is such a joy to celebrate the accomplishments of our cities and get ideas and inspiration from them. Love the 
history booklet that came with it! 

Make them available to spouse 

Nice to see what others have done 

I am very familiar with Coos Bay and North Bend and wasn't sure I would find the tour interesting but I did. 

Great job by both cities. 

Great information! 

I love learning about other cities...their struggles and victories. 

It was really enlightening since we are just starting into our URA 

Loved the tours.  What a great way to display a Cities' Vision and use of Urban Renewal funds. 

The tours gave me an appreciation of how to get along with towns that have common borders. 

I love their City Manager, he was so great with info on the tour. 

both were great - very imformative 

34



Q9 - What is the most valuable component of the OMA Summer Conference (please 

select one)? 

 
 

 

# Answer % Count 

1 Networking 62.50% 25 

2 Mayors Open Forum 20.00% 8 

3 Breakout Sessions 12.50% 5 

4 General Sessions 2.50% 1 

5 Tours 0.00% 0 

6 Other 2.50% 1 

 Total 100% 40 

 

 

 

 

  

35



Q11 - Do you plan to attend the OMA 2022 Summer Conference?

# Field Minimum Maximum Mean 
Std 

Deviation 
Variance Count 

1 
Do you plan to attend the OMA 2022 

Summer Conference? 
1.00 2.00 1.13 0.33 0.11 40 

36



MEMORANDUM
To: OMA Board of Directors 

From: Patty Mulvihill, OMA Staff Liaison and LOC General Counsel 

Date: October 9, 2021 

Re: Review of 2021 OMA Summer Conference  

2021 OMA Summer Conference 

The 2021 OMA Summer Conference should be considered a success both in terms of attendee 

satisfaction and revenue obtained.  Attached herein is a report highlighting the responses to the 

conference evaluation. 

Additionally, on September 9th, the OMA Conference Planning met and debriefed the conference.  

During the Conference Planning Committee’s discussion, Committee members suggested some 

general thoughts and notes to consider when the next Conference is planned. 

1. Providing dual activities on Thursday (golf and sand dune tour) was successful.  The OMA

should strive to continue providing dual activities at future conferences.

2. The Silent Auction was successful this year and the Committee hopes to continue its success

in future years.  Suggestions for expanding the auction included: (a) allowing auction

attendees to simply donate money to the scholarship account without having to purchase a

basket as an additional option; and (b) provide a large door prize wherein to win the prize

attendees need to purchase a raffle ticket for a nominal amount ($10 was the example

provided).

3. Keynote speakers should be provided more solid expectations in the future.  While the

message was solid, the speech was perhaps too short.  The expectation for future years will

be that staff work with the speaker to ensure the OMA’s expectations are better understood

and met.

4. Networking opportunities need to include more structure that brings veteran mayors and

new mayors closer together.

5. New mayors should be provided more direct resources, which may include: (a) the option of

checking a box on registration that indicates they would like a Board member to call them in

advance of the conference to answer any questions they may have and give them a sense of

what to expect at conference; and (b) provide a new mayor’s track or identify the sessions

that new mayors would find most helpful.

6. Accept that repeat sessions are not inherently bad.  Prior committees have tried to not repeat

topics that had been covered at prior conferences, but it may be appropriate to accept that

certain topics should always be provided because those topics are always relevant.

Specifically, it may be appropriate to always have sessions on how to work with city

managers, how to really understand your role and power as a mayor, etc.

37



7. To show the respect and appreciation for host cities and the work the city puts into the

conference, it would be good for the OMA to strongly push conference attendees to

participate in the city-provided events.

8. Identify ways in which to better control some of the educational sessions – there were

multiple sessions where mayors spoke frequently and prohibited the speaker from presenting

their entire session.

9. Seek session ideas and proposals from all over, not just from OMA Board and Committee

members – and then vet those ideas and proposals.  This may allow for expanded session

ideas.

38



39



40



41



42



43



T o  c o n v e n e ,  n e t w o r k ,  t r a i n ,  a n d  e m p o w e r  M a y o r s

1 2 0 1  Cour t  S t .  NE #2 0 0  ▪  SA L EM ,  OR EG ON 9 7 3 0 1  ▪  5 0 3 .5 8 8 .6 5 5 0  ▪  1 .8 0 0 .4 5 2 .0 3 3 8

TO: OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: HOUSELESSNESS & LIVABILITY CHALLENGES FOR CITIES 

DATE: FEBRUARY 21, 2022 

Oregon’s eight largest cities, led by Portland Mayor Ted Wheeler, are seeking $50 million from the 
Oregon legislature in direct investment to cities to develop and operate safe temporary shelters, provide 
needed services to the unhoused community, and keep communities clean.  The request seeks to have 
the money apportioned by population: Beaverton at $2.91 million; Bend at $2.96 million; Eugene at 
$5.27 million; Gresham at $3.41 million; Hillsboro at $3.18 million; Medford at $2.56 million; Portland 
at 19.47 million; Salem at 5.24 million; and $5 million in grant funds for smaller cities across Oregon to 
address the impacts of houselessness in their communities.   

These eight cities have submitted their request to the Oregon Legislature and Governor Brown.  A letter, 
as well as a summary of the full plan, are included with this Memorandum for ease of reference.  
President Gowing has invited Mayor Wheeler to the March 4th OMA Board of Directors meeting to 
discuss the request and to answer any questions Board members may have regarding this proposal.  If 
the OMA Board wishes to support this funding request, I have prepared a draft Resolution for review 
and approval. 

It is important to note that this $50 million request for assistance is done in concert with House Bill 4123 
and is not, in the LOC’s perspective, deemed to compete with or replace House Bill 4123.  House bill 
4123 establishes locally led regional housing coordination through eight pilot communities across the 
state.  Each pilot would receive $1 million in state funding over two years to operationalize coordinated 
offices to strengthen their communities’ houselessness response by: providing high-level coordination, 
centralized communication, and strategic visioning; identifying opportunities to more effectively 
leverage existing funds and access new resources; and creating a more equitable, accessible and 
responsive system for their residents experiencing houselessness.  The following communities represent 
the eight pilot programs: 

• Benton County and the city of Corvallis;
• Coos County, the city of North Bend, and the city of Coos Bay;
• Deschutes County, the city of Bend, the city of La Pine, the city of Redmond, and the city of

Sisters;
• Lincoln County, the city of Lincoln City, the city of Newport, and the City of Toledo;

44

R e t u r n  t o  
A g e n d a



• Mid-Columbia Community Action Council, Hood River County, Sherman County, Wasco
County, the city of The Dalles, and the city of Hood River;

• Polk County, the city of Dallas, the city of Falls City, the city of Independence, the city of
Monmouth, the city of Willamina, the Confederated Tribes of the Grande Ronde, and the Mid-
Willamette Valley Community Action Agency;

• Tillamook County, the city of Tillamook, the city of Bay City, the city of Garibaldi, the city of
Rockaway Beach, the city of Wheeler, the city of Manzanita, and the Tillamook County
Community Action Resources Enterprises; and

• Umatilla County, the city of Umatilla, the city of Stanfield, the city of Echo, and the city of
Hermiston.

Proposed Motion: I move to adopt Resolution 2022-1 as proposed by LOC staff. 

45



Oregon’s Unsheltered Houseless Emergency Is a Humanitarian Crisis 
That Needs State Support 

Unsheltered houselessness, people living outside, is a humanitarian crisis in Oregon. 

Every Oregon mayor in every city knows the need for public services is often greater than available funds can 
provide. Breathing new life into our communities' social and economic recovery is a top priority for each of us 
as we continue to navigate the COVID-19 pandemic.  

We hear concerns from our constituents daily. They are deeply troubled that so many community members 
are living outside in dangerous and unsanitary conditions. They are frustrated at the pace of assistance and 
improvement within their communities. They are demanding a change – a change that compassionately 
balances the needs of houseless community members, while also allowing public spaces to be accessible.   
Cities across Oregon are stretching their resources as best they can, but it is not enough.  

Our cities are innovating new responses to houselessness, recognizing that the challenge is multi-faceted and 
requires strong partnerships with counties, with private service providers, and with the business community. 
We are creating new year-round shelters, emergency camping areas, day centers, site clean-up and 
sanitation, increased outreach, and counseling services, and creating a balanced approach with enforcement 
of our community’s laws and regulations.  The cost of these services is staggering, and we need additional 
state resources to amplify our work. 

But make no mistake: city budgets do not come close to addressing this problem. Yet, the human tragedy of 
too many Oregonians in crisis, living outside, often in unsanitary and dangerous situations, is a major concern 
for everyone. 

Unsheltered houseless Oregonians cannot afford to wait another year. Oregon’s communities cannot wait 
another year for another session of the state legislature.  The crisis is acute, and our local efforts are not 
meeting the increasing demand. It is time for the state to build upon our efforts through an intentional 
investment this session. 

We are asking our legislature to take a meaningful step in the right direction by supporting a $50M in direct 
investment to cities to develop and operate safe temporary shelters, provide needed services to the 
unhoused community, and keep our communities clean.  We recognize the need for assistance across the 
state, that is why the $50M request includes grant funding for smaller communities and we support HB 4123 
which will create new city/county homeless coordination responses in Benton, Coos, Deschutes, Lincoln, 
Hood River, Sherman, Wasco, Polk, Tillamook, and Umatilla counties. 

46



This investment is desperately needed now, and most Oregonians support immediate action. A recent 
statewide public opinion poll, conducted by DHM Research, showed that after concerns about the rising cost 
of living, houselessness was the highest issue of concern statewide. 

Our communities cannot wait. We urge this legislature to join us in addressing the deteriorating 
humanitarian crisis in our communities by acting now to help the cities of Oregon get our houseless 
neighbors the shelter, support services, and sanitary conditions they need immediately, then into housing. 

Lacey Beaty 
Mayor of Beaverton 

Sally Russell 
Mayor of Bend 

Lucy Vinis 
Mayor of Eugene 

Travis Stovall 
Mayor of Gresham 

Steve Callaway  
Mayor of Hillsboro 

Randy Sparacino 
Mayor of Medford 

Ted Wheeler 
Mayor of Portland 

Chuck Bennett 
Mayor of Salem 

47



2022 Unhoused Community Response-State of Oregon Request 

Cities are facing a crisis as we respond to the unhoused emergency across our state.  Many 
jurisdictions have developed new programs, expanded service efforts, built regional 
partnerships, and are making substantial investments of General Fund and American Rescue 
Plan Act (ARPA) funds to respond to the unhoused emergency.  Yet, this humanitarian crisis 
exceeds our individual capacity. With active projects, programs, and partnerships in place in 
many cities in Oregon, the state has an opportunity to build upon these efforts to make an 
immediate and impactful difference.  

Oregon is not alone, and because of similar situations across the west coast, the state 
governments in California and Washington are stepping up to address this issue. California 
Governor Newsom has proposed to use $14 billion, and Washington Governor Inslee is seeking 
to invest $2 billion to specifically address homelessness in their states.  Recently, the Oregon 
Legislative Revenue Forecast identified an additional $1B in new revenue for the coming fiscal 
year, which presents a prime opportunity for Oregon to join west coast states with front line one-
time investments in our communities.  

While houselessness impacts our entire state, it is most heavily concentrated in larger urban 
areas. That is why a group of mid-sized and large cities in Oregon (Eugene, Medford, Beaverton, 
Hillsboro, Bend, Gresham, Salem and Portland) are requesting direct assistance from the state to 
join us in our unhoused responses and support our existing efforts.  Financial support to 
accelerate the programs that we are currently operating will make an impact now, providing 
shelter, services, and safety for our most vulnerable community members.   

We are seeking a total package of $50M with $45M as an essential, urgent direct allocation 
to these larger cities and $5M to DAS for competitive grants to smaller cities across 
Oregon covering the spectrum of immediate need: 

 Acquisition, rehabilitation for emergency shelter and safe sleep sites

 Operations for emergency shelter and safe sleep sites

 Sanitary services

 Debris removal from abandoned camps

 Support services for individuals and families experiencing homelessness, including
housing navigation, medical, behavioral health, and mental health care

 Resource enhancement for cities and non-profit partners for houseless service provision

 Culturally appropriate programs that stabilize individuals and families through food
assistance, supportive service information and referrals

48



Page 2 of 2 

2022 Unhoused Community Response Funding Request 15-Feb-22

 Support for community engagement and education

 Funding cannot be used to sweep homeless camps or for other law enforcement efforts
related to homelessness.

This $50M request would be apportioned by population to speed the contracting process with the State 
and facilitate swift implementation: Beaverton $2.91M; Bend $2.96M; Eugene $5.27M; Gresham $3.41M; 
Hillsboro $3.18M; Medford $2.56M; Portland $19.47M; Salem $5.24M; Cities Grant $5M. 

Currently Eugene, Salem, Beaverton, Hillsboro, Portland, Gresham, Bend, and Medford alone 
have already allocated $111.2M for unhoused response in FY22.   

1) Emergency Shelter and Camping (development and operation efforts)
Cities have budgeted for FY22 to expend roughly $64.3M for emergency shelter and camping
options.  This is a mix of local general funds, some local ARPA funds, ARPA allocations from the
state in 2021, and direct allocations from the state for shelter funding in 2021.  These efforts
include emergency shelters, navigation centers, car camping sites, and tent camping sites.

2) Support Services
Cities have budgeted for FY22 to expend roughly $39.2M for support services.  This is a mix of
local general funds, CDBG allocation, and some ARPA local funds.   Services include support for
day shelters, human services investments, health care for unhoused, outreach services, and
staffing at local agencies and non-profits.

3) Sanitation and Clean-up efforts.
Cities have budgeted for FY22 to expend roughly $8M for clean-up and sanitation services, with
the majority of these funds coming from local general funds. These activities include camp clean
up and site remediation expenses, sanitation for camps including port-o-potties and showers, to
costs associated with towing abandoned vehicles (RVs and trailers) from the right of way.

An immediate, initial $50M state investment to match recent historic local investments will 
be transformational in our efforts to create safe places and provide critical services for our 
unhoused community members and is an essential part of any comprehensive housing and 
homeless package this session. 

This package should include forward-looking investments, including the $8M request in HB 4123 
to support coordinated homeless response systems in eight pilot communities—which comprise 
10 counties and more than two dozen cities—around the state. 

Together, these two houseless requests represent substantial investments in both immediate 
and future houseless needs in cities and counties—urban and rural—and regional collaboration 
between local governments and community partners throughout the state.

49



 

City of Beaverton  12725 SW Millikan Way  PO Box 4755  Beaverton, OR 97076  www.BeavertonOregon.gov 

2022 Unhoused Community Response Request 
 

Homelessness is a growing crisis in Beaverton, Washington County, and across the country. The City 
of Beaverton has long prioritized the need for a year-round shelter and support services for 
individuals experiencing homeless, as outlined in Beaverton’s Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Plan, 
Community Vision Plan, Comprehensive Plan, and Housing Five-Year Action Plan.  The city works in 
cooperation with numerous community-based organizations to connect individuals and families to 
critical services and long-term housing solutions; unfortunately, immediate needs far outweigh 
available resources. 
 
The City of Beaverton seeks direct assistance from the state during the 2022 legislative session to 
support and build upon our existing efforts to respond to the unhoused emergency across our state: 
 

Emergency Shelter and Camping 
 

The City of Beaverton funds the operation of a severe weather shelter to provide a warm, safe space 
for adults experiencing homelessness during the winter months. A permanent, year-round shelter 
is currently under development in partnership with Washington County to provide greater stability 
and a link to permanent housing for houseless residents. The City also funds a Safe Parking Program 
to provide a safe, legal place for people experiencing homelessness and living out of their vehicles 
to park. 
 
In FY22, the City allocated $2.6 million to emergency shelter and camping efforts, including $2.3 
million in state ARPA funds received during the 2021 session to build a permanent, year-round 
shelter in Beaverton with a health clinic.  
 
Additional funds secured in 2022 will support expanded services for the severe weather shelter and 
facilitate the acquisition and rehabilitation of emergency shelter and safe sleep sites. 
 

Support Services 
 

The City of Beaverton is committed to meeting the needs of those experiencing homelessness 
through collaborative community partnerships that use a culturally responsive, trauma-informed 
approach and prioritize low-barrier options for those seeking support. The City works to ensure 
that homelessness is a rare and brief experience and that people receive the services they need to 
stabilize their lives and transition back into permanent housing. For example, the City contracts 
with a local organization to provide direct street outreach and housing navigation to unsheltered 
adults experiencing homelessness in Beaverton. 
 

In FY 22, the City allocated $1.15 million to homeless supportive services, including grants to 
community-based organizations to conduct culturally-responsive outreach.  
 
Additional funds secured in 2022 will help expand contract services for outreach workers, increase 
funding for programs to stabilize individuals and families, and enhance the City’s bike team program 
to proactively engage and connect community members to services. 
 

50



City of Beaverton  12725 SW Millikan Way  PO Box 4755  Beaverton, OR 97076  www.BeavertonOregon.gov 

Sanitation and Clean Up Efforts 

Persons experiencing homelessness experience significant barriers to self-care and personal hygiene, 
including limited access to clean showers, laundry and hand washing facilities. Access to water, 
sanitation, and hygiene supplies is critical for the health and safety of our unhoused community 
members. 

In FY 22, the City allocated $6,500 for portable restroom facilities in Beaverton’s City Park. 

Additional funds secured in 2022 will fund strategic debris cleanup from abandoned camps, sanitation 
services for camps including port-o-potties and showers, and costs associated with towing abandoned 
vehicles and maintaining the right of way. 

51



 

City of Bend  710 NW Wall St  PO Box 431  Bend, OR 97709 www.bendoregon.gov 

2022 Unhoused Community Response Request 
 

Houselessness is a growing crisis in Bend, Deschutes County, and across the country. The City of Bend 
has long prioritized the construction of deed restricted affordable housing, housing density and mix, and 
invested CDBG funds in shelters and shelter operations. In 2019, the City began to articulate a housing 
continuum that includes outdoor shelters, emergency shelters, transitional housing and deed restricted 
affordable housing. Using CDBG-CV dollars we open the City’s first year-round shelter in June 2021. Since 
then, our efforts have centered on gaining broad stakeholder engagement in both defining the 
shortcomings in the houseless services and the solutions required to address those shortcomings. Those 
revelations provide the basis for this session’s HB 4123.  
 
As part of a coalition of the eight largest cities in Oregon, the City of Bend seeks direct assistance from 
the state during the 2022 legislative session to continue to fund the efforts underway to address the 
increasing number of community members experiencing houselessness in Oregon.  
 

Emergency Shelter and Camping 
 

The City of Bend, through CDBG entitlement funding, funds the operation of the year-round emergency 
low barrier shelter. This property was acquired in September 2021 with $2M in State ARPA funds. FY 22 
and FY 23 operations will to be funded with $900,000 in local CDBG funds and $2.5M in HB 2004 funds 
for the City of Bend’s Navigation Center. Renovations are anticipated to be $2M. Funding has not been 
fully identified. After June 2024, new operating funds will be needed for year-round shelter operations. 
 
A second low barrier emergency shelter was acquired in July 2021 using $2.4M in Turnkey funds. 
Renovation funds will come from $500,000 in Turnkey funds and from $500,000 in Local ARPA funds. 
Renovations are anticipated to cost $1M. Local ARPA funds, State CDBG funds and future funds from 
OHCS are anticipated to cover the estimated $1M in annual operating costs 
 
Two outdoor shelters are envisioned in Bend by the end of FY 2022. In FY 2022, City of Bend allocated 
$9M to emergency shelter acquisition ($4.5M), renovation ($1M), and operating ($2M). An additional 
$1.M has been allocated to outdoor shelters. 
 
Additional funds secured in 2022 will support renovation expenses at both low barrier shelters and 
supportive services like those typically associated with Permanent Supportive Housing. 
 
 

Support Services 
 

The City of Bend is committed to meeting the needs of those experiencing houselessness through 
collaborative community partnerships that use a culturally responsive, trauma-informed approach and 
prioritize low-barrier options for those seeking support. The City works to ensure that houselessness is 
a rare and brief experience and that people receive the services they need to stabilize their lives and 
transition back into permanent housing. For example, the City contracts with a local organization to 

52



City of Beaverton  12725 SW Millikan Way  PO Box 4755  Beaverton, OR 97076  www.BeavertonOregon.gov 

provide direct street outreach and housing navigation to unsheltered adults experiencing homelessness 
in Bend. 

In FY 22, the City allocated $250,000 to grants to community organizations. $50,000 to case management 
and outreach services. 

Additional funds secured in 2022 will expand contract services for outreach workers, increase funding for 
programs to stabilize individuals and families, and provide start-up funds for Family Kitchen to add a 
second day services and meal service center.  

Sanitation and Clean Up Efforts 

People experiencing houselessness face significant barriers to self-care and personal hygiene, 
including limited access to clean showers, laundry, hand washing facilities, and garbage services. Access 
to water, sanitation, hygiene supplies, and garbage service is critical for the health and safety of our 
unhoused community members. 

In fiscal year 2022, the City of Bend allocated $100,000 to provide portable toilets, hand washing 
stations, warming and cooling stations, garbage removal, shower services to all unsanctioned camping 
locations.  

Additional funds secured in 2022 will fund strategic debris cleanup from abandoned camps, sanitation 
services for camps including port-o-potties and showers, and costs associated with towing abandoned 
vehicles and maintaining the right of way. 

53



 
 

 

2022 Unhoused Community Response Request Plan 
 
The City is actively partnering with Lane County and community stakeholders by investing in 
strategies to strengthen our community’s homelessness response system. Through programs and 
partnerships, the City is helping people stabilize, connect with needed resources, and access shelter. 
Eugene seeks $5M during the 2022 Session to match local investments for:  
 
Emergency Shelter and Camping 
 
The goal of Safe Sleep Sites is to provide safe, legal places for people experiencing homelessness to 
sleep and connect to services, as well as reduce the impacts of unsanctioned camping across the city. 
Sites will be managed by social service providers and provide upwards of 500 spaces for people 
experiencing homelessness to legally park vehicles or sleep in tents. Approved sites include two 
adjacent locations on Garfield Street operated by St. Vincent de Paul, a site at the intersection of 
Bethel/Roosevelt Blvd owned and operated by SquareOne Villages, a site at Dani Street operated by 
EveryOne Village, and a city-owned site at Chase Commons Park. 
 
In FY22, the City of Eugene allocated $5.3M to safe sleep sites, including $3.5M of ARPA funding from 
the local legislative delegation as part of the 2021 Legislature.  
 
State funds provided in 2022 will support securing future sites, infrastructure and lease costs, and 
providers of these sites by funding operational costs. 
 
Support Services 
 
Funding is needed to support the operation for the low-barrier Shelter and Navigation Center, as well 
as costs associated with a mobile shower trailer and administrative costs for supporting businesses 
and homelessness services programming.  We are also seeing the need for additional day services, as 
St Vincent de Paul’s Lindholm Center is unable to meet the daily needs for the unhoused population.   
 
In FY22, the City of Eugene allocated $6.1M for unhoused support services, outreach, and shelter 
options (non-safe sleep sites).    
 
State funds provided in 2022 will fund direct support services to unhoused community members.  
 
Sanitation and Clean Up Efforts 
Eugene is focused on improving coordination, transparency, and responsiveness to urban camping 
that better addresses the needs of people who lack housing and supports the health and safety of our 
entire community. Investments include non-law enforcement response to camping such as: Park 
Ambassadors, right-of-way cleanup, park operations, and sanitation, and towing abandoned vehicles. 
 
In FY22, the City of Eugene allocated $3.6 million for camping response.  
 
State funds provided in 2022 will fund clean-up, sanitation, and towing abandoned vehicle costs.  

54



 

 
2022 Unhoused Community Response Request 

 
The City of Gresham invests in strategies to strengthen our community’s homelessness response system 
in partnership with Multnomah County and community organizations.  

The City of Gresham Homeless Services Team is funded primarily through an annual grant from the Joint 
Office of Homeless Services (JOHS) as part of Multnomah County. The grant focuses on individuals who 
are experiencing chronic homelessness or are unsheltered. In addition, City Council approved ARPA 
funding in the amount of $320K which adds an additional Homeless Services Specialist, administrative 
support for the program and additional materials and services items such as motel vouchers.   

Gresham’s existing funds require the City provide intensive street engagement to improve services for 
populations experiencing homelessness, and to address homeless-related livability issues in Gresham. 
The City is committing to improving outcomes for people with high barriers to housing who are 
experiencing homelessness in public places. 

Additional funding in 2022 will support emergency shelter resources and support services including rent 
assistance, food assistance, tenant education, job training and placement, and housing services. 

 
 
Infusing funds into existing successful programs 
at the City of Gresham will make an impact 
now, providing shelter, services, and safety for 
our most vulnerable community members.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Emergency Shelter and Housing Resources: City 
of Gresham has budgeted funds to assist 
community members in finding shelter and 
housing resources. Gresham City Council 
allocated $275,000 in ARPA funds for a limited 
term staff position to assist community 
members with referrals to housing-related 
resources. Additional funds will support 
expanded services for emergency shelters, 
navigation centers and temporary housing. 
 
Support Services: Gresham has invested 
existing funds to support people that are 
houseless or at the greatest risk of housing 
instability, including the majority of the City’s 
approximately $2.3 million allocation of HOME-
ARP funds. Gresham City Council has also 
invested $100,000 to assist community 
members with food assistance, and $500,000 to 
assist housing vulnerable with utility assistance. 
Additional funds will increase services and 
programs to stabilize families including rent 
assistance, tenant education, financial training, 
job training and placement, and housing 
counseling services.  

55



 

2022 Unhoused Community Response Request 
 

Currently, there are no year-round emergency shelter beds for single adults in Hillsboro. Data from 
the latest available annual Point-In-Time Homeless Count shows 213 unsheltered persons were 
identified living unsheltered in Hillsboro. This is equal to 60% of Washington County’s total number 
of persons living outside.  
 
The	 City	 of	Hillsboro	 seeks	 direct	 assistance	 from	 the	 state	 during	 the	 2022	 legislative	 session	 to	
support	and	build	upon	our	existing	efforts	to	respond	to	the	unhoused	emergency	across	our	state:	
 

Emergency	Shelter		
 

The City of Hillsboro has funded the operations and site prep of temporary sheltering programs for 
several years, including funding and support for winter/inclement weather shelters and an 
alternative shelter safe sleep site as COVID 19 response in 2020 and 2021. 
 
In FY21-22, the city allocated $4.4 million to emergency shelter, day shelters, camping, and 
supportive services efforts. $2.75 million was expended for site acquisition of a property to become 
the first year-round shelter in Hillsboro. This site will offer a hybrid shelter model, with both 
congregate facilities as well as non-congregate sleeping pods. This model will allow the shelter to 
be responsive to persons in need of COVID 19 isolation or who are otherwise unable to tolerate 
congregate settings due to disabling conditions, as well as allow us to maximize the property to hit 
a 50-bed target. 
 
Jurisdictional	Coordination:	
Shelter sites are needed across Washington County to develop a geographically accessible shelter 
network. Hillsboro is in close communication and coordination with Beaverton and other  
neighboring cities as they develop sheltering plans.  
 
In addition, Hillsboro has been working in partnership with Washington County, who will fund the 
ongoing operations of the site through Supportive Housing Services Funds. Once operational, this 
site will be an outcome driven, 24/7 operational shelter for single adults, coupled with housing 
navigation and supportive services. 
 
Timeline:		
Within 9 months of receiving funds, we will have fully completed architectural designs and 
construction plans of the shelter campus, including design of congregate facilities and non-
congregate sleeping pod spaces. We also expect to have completed a full RFP process to select a 
company to complete work, which will provide us with a firm cost. We expect construction to begin 
in late fall/early winter of 2022, meaning we would begin spending within 9 months of receiving 
funds. Construction is estimated to take no less than 6-8 months, so funds for this project could be 
fully expended by June-August of 2023, if these estimates hold correct.  
 

56



We	expect	 the	 funding	gap	 for	 this	project	 to	be	very	close	 to	 the	amount	Hillsboro	would	 receive	
through	funds	from	the	2022	Legislative	Session	through	this	request.	The	city	has	additional	projects	
and	 programs	we	 are	 developing	 that	 could	 also	 be	 leveraged	 should	 additional	 funding	 become	
available.	 These	 projects	 include	 initiation	 of	 safe	 sleep	 sites	 for	 persons	 experiencing	 vehicular	
homelessness,	 debris	management	 utilizing	 supportive	 employment	models	 for	 persons	with	 lived	
experience	of	homelessness,	and	other	critical	supports,	such	as	expanding	day	shelter	hours	currently	
available	 five	days	per	week	to	seven	days	per	week.	All	of	these	projects	would	be	ready	to	deploy	
funds	in	the	3–9	month	timeline.	

57



 
 
 

 

City of Medford 411 West 8th Street, Medford, OR 97501 541-774-2000 medfordoregon.gov 

2022 Unhoused Community Response Request 
The City of Medford continues to partner with local service providers in an effort to assist our homeless 
community with stabilization, housing and services. While committing millions of local funds towards this 
effort, we are finding our resources insufficient to address the seemingly ever-expanding need. The City is 
requesting $2.56M during the 2022 Session to match our local investment in the following categories. 

Emergency Shelter and Camping 
Most for the City’s focus has been placed on assisting chronically unhoused individuals. The City must increase its 
services to unhoused youth and families.   

Over the past two years the City has allocated $4.66M to leasing land, purchasing and remodeling buildings, and 
providing services to unhoused individuals; $3.65M to similar activities that also provide some level of support to 
families and youth; and $525K to programs that specifically serve youth and families.  
 
State funds provided in 2022 will be used to provide services to unhoused youth and families. 

Support Services 
In fiscal year 2022 the City of Medford allocated $1.04M to homeless services.  The City has focused on 
building the infrastructure to expand the service delivery by leasing land, and purchasing and remodeling 
buildings.  However, the City recognizes that our contribution to services must increase. Below are a few 
examples of the services the City supports: 

 Direct, on-site services for unhoused individuals & families at a new Navigation Center (100 beds) 
 Wrap-around services for 30 residents of Hope Village (tiny homes) 
 Direct, on-site services for unhoused individuals, families, and the medically fragile at Project 

Turnkey (47 units) 
 Medical services to residents of the Urban Campground (100 sites) 
 Operation of a severe weather shelter (65-person occupancy) 

 
State funds provided in 2022 will fund direct support services to unhoused community members. 

Sanitation and Clean Up Efforts 
Medford is focused on improving coordination, transparency, and responsiveness to urban camping that 
addresses the needs of people who lack housing and supports the health and safety of our entire 
community. Investments include non-law enforcement response to camping such as: connections to 
shelter and housing, access to food and mobile healthcare, and efforts to maintain public sanitation.  In 
fiscal year 2022, Medford allocated approximately $700,000 for this camping response.  
 
State funds provided in 2022 will fund outreach services to connect unhoused community members to 
Medford’s Urban Campground and other housing options, fund direct services at the Urban Campground 
and provide funding for clean-up.  

58



City of Portland 

1221 SW Fourth Avenue   Portland, Oregon 97204 

2022 Unsheltered Houseless Community Response Request 

The humanitarian crisis of unsheltered individuals often living in squalid camps in dangerous 
locations continues to grow in the City of Portland. Portland is partnering with Multnomah 
County to invest in strategies that strengthen our communities’ houselessness response. But 
the complexity and magnitude of Oregon’s outdoor unsheltered houselessness crisis is 
outstripping city and county budgets.  While our city and county governments are acting with 
urgency, we do not have the resources at the local level to invest at the scale necessary to solve 
the problem.  

The City of Portland seeks direct assistance from the state during the 2022 legislative session to 
support and build upon our existing efforts to respond to the unsheltered houseless emergency 
across our state: 

Emergency Shelter and Camping 
The City of Portland is committed to investing in the continuum of shelter options to help 
individuals transition from living on the streets to finding stability in permanent housing, while 
also reducing the impact of unsanctioned camping throughout the City. 

In FY22, the City of Portland allocated over $46.5 million to emergency shelter and camping 
efforts, including, but not limited to $21 million for Safety Off the Streets, $16 million for Safe 
Rest Villages, $4.5 million in Motel Shelter, and $5 million for additional shelter spacing serving 
400 individuals. 

Additional funds secured in the 2022 will support expanded temporary shelter by securing future 
sites, infrastructure, and lease costs, and assisting in operational costs. 

Support Services  
The City of Portland is committed to helping individuals stabilize, connect with needed services, 
and access shelter.  

In FY22, the City of Portland allocated over $5.2 million to support services including, but not 
limited to $3.85 million for storage and hygiene solutions for an additional 250-330 individuals, 
$687,000 for outreach to help individuals navigate services, $175,000 for the creation of a 
coordination center to better coordinate city agencies working to address houselessness, and 
$500,000 for service provider hiring and retention resources. 

59



1221 SW Fourth Avenue, Suite 340    Portland, Oregon 97204 
MayorWheeler@PortlandOregon.gov  

State funds provided in 2022 will fund direct services to unsheltered houseless community 
members.  

Sanitation and Clean Up Efforts  
The City of Portland is committed reducing the impact of unsanctioned camping and to better 
address the needs of people living outside. 

In FY22, the City of Portland allocated $6.5 million for camping response, graffiti removal, and 
sanitation. 

State funds provided in 2022 will fund clean-up, sanitation, and towing of abandoned vehicle and 
RV’s.  

60



 
 

2022 Unhoused Community Response Request 
 
In Salem, we are spending down $18.6 million in one-time resources for sheltering.  This includes the 
remaining $8.1 million of our ARPA allocation (after revenue replacement and COVID-response, required 
to keep full staffing levels) and an additional $10.5 million for sheltering received in the last Legislative 
Session. 
 
As of June 1, 2020, data available from the point in time count, suggests that more than 1,100 are living 
unsheltered in our community.  According to the Mid-Valley Homeless Alliance Gap Analysis report in 
August 2021, more among Salem’s unsheltered population are living chronically homeless– 49% of Salem’s 
population compared to 37% in Oregon. 
 
Our existing one-time funds will be exhausted by June 30, 2024 and the micro-shelter communities and our 
navigation center will be forced to close barring any new revenue or other financial support for these 
emergency sheltering services. 
  
Emergency Shelter and Camping 
These funds, from ARPA and direct State investment, have allowed us to stand up: 
 Two micro-shelter communities, with support of our non-profits service providers, serving 232 

people.  We partner with Church of the Park and Catholic Community Services.  Each micro-shelter 
community takes about $1.5 million each year to operate.  Our aim is to lease properties because 
available funding for this investment expires June 30, 2024. 

 ARCHES Hotel – Project Turnkey hotel serving victims of Santiam Canyon fires and those living 
unsheltered in our community.  We partnered with Mid-Willamette Valley Community Action to 
provide gap funding so that they could stand this service up.  

 SafeSleep United expansion - The City Council approved ARPA funding for a $300,000 grant to 
United Way Safe Sleep to expand their women's shelter capacity to serve 45 individuals nightly.  

 Navigation Center – Through a separate $5 million grant from the State of Oregon, we’ve purchased 
a building for low-barrier sheltering of 50 people in each 120-day cohort with wraparound service 
support.   We estimate that available operating dollars for this investment will begin to lower service 
level on June 30, 2024.  The navigation center will operate 24-hours a day, seven days a week, with 
intensive case management to connect people to public benefits, health services, and permanent 
housing. A navigation center differs from traditional shelter models which require sobriety upon 
entry, segregate by gender, and offer little to no space for personal possessions or pets.  

 Safe Park Program – from the City’s General Fund, Salem is supporting safe camping people with 
vehicles at scattered sites for about $240,000 on an annual basis.  

 Salem Warming Network – also, from the City’s General Fund, Salem supports the non-profit 
coalition of warming shelter sites throughout our community for about $140,000 annually.   

 Through our Salem Housing Authority, we’ve also stood up permanent supportive housing at 
Redwood Crossings (37 units), with an eye to opening in Yaquina (52 units) and Sequoia (60 units) 
within next year.  The cost of permanent supportive services exceeds available resources.  To meet 
construction needs, we’ve added in CDBG/HOME and urban renewal funds. 

 

61



February 14, 2022 

o Redwood Crossings: CDBG - $400,000 (for construction); Urban Renewal Grant - $300,000
(for construction)

o Yaquina /Southfair: CDBG - $1,608,830 (for construction); HOME - $400,000 (for
construction). The Southfair reference is to SHA-owned property with 42 one-, two-, and
three-bedroom apartments undergoing renovation.

o Sequoia Crossings: HOME - $1,500,000 (for construction)

The City of Salem seeks direct assistance from the state during the 2022 legislative session to continue offering 
emergency shelter through micro-shelter village communities and Safe Park Programs, which will support and 
build upon our existing efforts to respond to the unhoused emergency across our state. 

Support Services 
 Since 2017, we’ve allocated $3.9 million of limited General Fund dollars to support the Homeless

Rental Assistance Program. By October 2021, more than 350 people were housed with a
combination of rental assistance and intensive case management for housing stability.

 On an annual basis, we provide funding to Northwest Human Services for their Crisis and
Emergency Hotline.  Salem also supports their Emergency Financial Assistance program.  All told,
this year’s investments account for $135,000 of the City’s General Fund.

The City of Salem seeks direct assistance from the state during the 2022 legislative session to grow our response 
to much-needed support services to respond to the unhoused emergency across our community. 

Sanitation and Clean Up Efforts 
 Rapid Response Team. Our current practice is to concentrate public health and sanitation clean-

up services in a one-day-per week response by pulling staff from Police Department, Public Works
and Community Enforcement existing teams for clean-ups of City properties – including parks and
rights of way.  This work is accompanied by our street outreach teams to help people connect to
existing services and available resources.
At this time, we estimate $1,170,000 is needed annually to staff a Rapid Response Team.  The
Rapid Response Team would be better able to respond to public health and safety concerns in
areas of concern.  Since we launched a portal to receive these types of concerns in October of
2021, we have received 500 concerns through February 14, 2022 for an average of 3.8 each day.
This service includes funding for six full time employees.

 Non-Profit Work Program.  We are recommending $205,000 on an annual basis in funding for a
grant program for a non-profit to hire employees with lived homeless experience to respond and
clean up unmanaged homeless areas.  Through this peer model, we expect people to make better
connections around shared accountability for public spaces.

 Towing and Environmental Clean-up. Salem recently allocated $200,000 for towing, vehicle
repair, supplies, and another $160,000 for biohazard clean-up.

The City of Salem seeks direct assistance from the state during the 2022 legislative session to fund our rapid 
Response Team and Non-Profit Work Program.  These funds will support and build upon our existing efforts to 
respond to the unhoused emergency across our state. 

62



RESOLUTION NO: 2022-1 
WHEREAS,  a significant number of Oregon cities are facing a crisis of unhoused persons; and 

WHEREAS, cities across Orgon have developed programs, expanded service efforts, built 
regional partnerships, and have significantly invested General Fund and American 
Rescue Plan Act funds to responds to the unhoused persons emergency; and 

WHEREAS, despite the significant financial investments made by Oregon cities to address this 
crisis, the crisis exceeds each city’s individual capacity and fiscal support from 
the State of Oregon is necessary and vital; and 

WHEREAS, the crisis of unhouses persons in Oregon is one that requires active and 
meaningful collaboration between the State of Oregon and its 241 cities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED by the OMA Board of Directors as follows: 

1. The Oregon Mayors Association strongly supports the cities of Beaverton, Bend, Eugene,
Gresham, Hillsboro, Medford, Portland, and Salem’s request for $50 million in state
funding as a way to help Oregon cities provide shelter to persons who are unhoused,
secure support services for persons experiencing houselessness, and to ensure Oregon’s
communities are maintained in a sanitary and accessible manner.

2. The Oregon Mayors Association respectfully urges the Oregon Legislature and Governor
Brown to approve the $50 million in requested state funding as recommended by the
aforementioned cities.

3. The Oregon Mayors Association strongly supports House Bill 4123 and respectfully
urges the Oregon Legislature and Governor Brown to provide their respective approvals.

Adopted this 4th day of March 2022, by the OMA Board of Directors. 

____________________________________ 
Jeff Gowing, President 
Mayor of Cottage Grove, Oregon 

63



T o  c o n v e n e ,  n e t w o r k ,  t r a i n ,  a n d  e m p o w e r  M a y o r s

1 2 0 1  Cour t  S t .  NE #2 0 0  ▪  SA L EM ,  OR EG ON 9 7 3 0 1  ▪  5 0 3 .5 8 8 .6 5 5 0  ▪  1 .8 0 0 .4 5 2 .0 3 3 8

TO: OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENTS TO 2022 COMMITTEES 

DATE: FEBRUARY 1, 2022 

The OMA Constitution and Bylaws, in Section 7, states that the President, with the Board’s approval, 
shall make appointments to the various OMA Committees.  These appointments traditionally happen 
during the first OMA Board meeting of each calendar year. 

For 2022, the following OMA Committees require appointments. 
• Conference Planning.  Plan the annual summer conference held between July 11 – July 13, 2022.

In addition, determine scholarship recipients to attend the conference. This committee typically
meets 3 – 5 times via Zoom between March – June.  No minimum or maximum number of
committee members.  No prerequisites to serve on committee.

• Mayor’s Leadership Award.  The Mayors Leadership Award recognizes the valuable
contributions made by mayors throughout Oregon in their communities. This committee reviews
nominations and determines recipients of the award. This committee typically meets once or
twice via Zoom in May/June.  This Committee is comprised of five persons, all of whom are
to be past recipients of the Award.

• Nominating.  Review applications and recommend a board slate of candidates for calendar year
2023. This committee typically meets 1 -2 times via Zoom in September.  This committee is
comprised of five persons, consisting of the Immediate Past President, two past presidents
who still serve as mayor, and two OMA members who are not serving on the Board and
who are not past presidents of the Board.

• Student Contest Selection.  The student contest is announced at the summer conference with
local submissions due to the OMA by April 8, 2022. This committee is responsible for
determining statewide winners for each of the three categories: poster (grades 4- 5); essays
(grades 6 – 8); and digital media presentations (grades 9 – 12). This committee typically meets
once in person in May.  No minimum or maximum number of committee members.  No
prerequisites to serve on committee.

• Constitution & Bylaws.  This committee’s purpose is to review and propose changes to the
OMA’s governing documents which include the Constitution, Bylaws and Policies. These
changes must then be approved by the OMA board and membership. This committee is ad hoc

64

R e t u r n  t o  
A g e n d a



and only meets as needed.  No minimum or maximum number of committee members.  No 
prerequisites to serve on committee. 

• Resource.  This is a newly created committee whose purpose is to assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities to serve as a resource and point of contact for new Oregon mayors.  The
committee will oversee the development and distribution of a new mayor orientation program to
be hosted in conjunction with the LOC’s Elected Essentials training program, while also seeking
to identify ways in which the OMA can be of better assistance to new mayors.  This committee is
expected to meet four to six times between February and October.  No minimum or maximum
number of committee members.  No prerequisites to serve on committee.

For the 2022 committees, OMA received 10 completed applications from Oregon mayors (who are not 
on the OMA Board of Directors).  Additionally, LOC staff were advised by four additional mayors that 
they would like to serve on particular committees:  Mayor Endicott of Redmond is willing to serve on 
the Resource Committee; Mayor Mays of Sherwood is willing to serve on the Constitution/Bylaws 
Committee and the Nominating Committee; and Mayor Callaway of Hillsboro is willing to serve on the 
Student Contest Committee.  All submitted applications are attached herein, with a summary below for 
ease of reference. 

Conference Leadership Nominating Student Constitution Resource 
Brian Dalton 

Dallas X X 

Cathy Clark 
Keizer Flexible and will serve on no more than 2 Committees 

Cecelia Koontz 
Monmouth X X 

George Endicott 
Redmond X 

John McArdle 
Independence X X X X 

Jules Waters 
West Linn X X 

Keith Mays 
Sherwood X X 

Lucy Vinis 
Eugene X 

Michael Preeding 
Sisters X X X 

Rick Rodgers 
Newberg Flexible and will serve on no more than 1 Committee 

Steve Callaway 
Hillsboro X 

Susan Wahlke 
Lincoln City X 

Tamie Kaufman 
Gold Beach X X 

65



66



67



68



W}e||lql^|n^Auedol,zZ,oz,1A;enlqa1Aqut.to;pa1a;dutoruJnlaU

'paau lsoru aLl] a^eq leql
(saapruurol Jo #) o] au u8rsse ol sJollar6 Jo pJeog VnO aLll roJ alrl plno/v\ pue alqrxalJ ue I

-*frU :d+!3

uo{.,,o- ,rr{,r? ) eqtr17

c/Lt// Ar,"r 
7

, t!#$ { $fr

:s|{,rr"il#&i

' 
Zt OZ' gI Ar enrqal 3u r u u r8aq saa]lr tu ruol

aJo[uJoauouo3utruasulpa}sela}utel,noA;t@tU]o}s|q1uln1aJpuea1a1duro]asea|d

'/v\olaq sr sanrlralqo JraLll pue saaul.uLuol

10 lsll V 'ZZOZ'71 fuensqal uo leallar lenuue Jtaql Sutrnp sluaulurodde
aauil.uruo3 zz0z a\ew llr/v\ pJeo8 a\L 'zz0z ur aaururuof vl^o ue uo anras

o13ur11rnn are oq/v\ sraqLuau VnO Surlrcr;os st sJolf,aJtO Jo pJeog VIAO aql ;c

'reqolr6 pue A:en:qa1 uea^ 1eq seurl 9 o1

,laau ol palradxa sr aellLur.uor srql 'sroAeLu /v\au ol aluelsrsse repeq Jo aq uel VnO aLll qllqm
ur sAem Alrluapr o1 Surlaas osle apq/vl 'uuerSo;d Surure.t1 slerluassl pallall s,l6l aql q1!m uollcunluor

ur palsoq aq o1 ue:8o.rd uorleluar:o roAeu A au e ]o uorlnqrllsrp pue luauudolanap aq] aasJano llr/vl
eellrLuruol eq1 'sroAeur uo8arg /v\au JoJ lleluof, 1o lurod pue elJnosar e se anres o1 sarlrlrqrsuodsal

s1r 3ur;111;n1 ur p.reo€ aLll lslsse o1 sr asod;nd asoq/v\ aapruJtuol peleerl A;nrau e sl s!rl1 lf,UnOSlU
'papaau

. se slaau A;uo pue 3oLl pe sr aallrurruo: srql 'drqs:aquau pue preoq VWO aql Aq panordde aq

uaql lsnu saSueqc eseql 'senrlod pue smelAg 'uorlnlllsuo3 aql apnllur r.{lrq^ stuauncop Sururano8
s,VlAO eql o1 sa8ueq: asodo.td pue /v\arnal o1sr asodrnd s.aollrLUrrof, slql s/V\V1Ag A NOIInIIISNOI

'4e61 ur uosrad ur aluo slaaur Ag;errdAl aaprur..uo3 slql'(ZI - 5 sape:3) suorleluasa;d erpau lellSlp
pue1(g-9saper8) sAessa1(g-ysaper8) latsod:sauoSalecearqlaqlJoqleaJoJsJauur^ epr/v\elels
Sururt-uralap;ol e;qrsuodseJ sr aellnuruol srql'ZZOZ'B lr.rdy Aq VNO eql o1 enp suotsstuqns lelol
qll/v\ aluaraluol reruuns aql}e pa3unouue sl lsaluol luapnls aqI NolJ.)l'lls IslrNoS lNlonl-s

ur .uooz er^ saurl Z- I slaau A;leordA1 aanruuro3 slql 'pJeog aql Jo sluaprse:d lsed ,", "l;H;'l:: pJCqA?.qr uo 3q41-as loqQJgord/v\ slaeluau-VlAlO.olnr"Bu-s.'Jol1eu-se aa]aslilrso{aa,s+uappatd+sed
onnl 'luaprsaid lsed alerpeuul aq1;o Surlsrsuoc 'suosred eAU Jo pasr:duroc sr eaurur.uol slql 'tZgZ

reaA:epualel rol satreprpuel Jo alels pJeoq e puauuo3ar pue suotleclldde rvrarnau gNIIVNI6ON
'aun;"/4e61

ur rxooz ern alr/vq ro aluo sleetr; Allerrdfi eeprrutuol srr.{l 'pJe/v\e aq1 ;o sluardoal saurtuJa}ap
pue suorleuruou sA arnar aaprtutuol srt{l 'sar}runuruol rlaq} ur uotalg lnoq8no;q} s;oAeur Aq apeuu

suorlnqrrluol alqenle^ aql sazluSorar pre/\^v drqsrapeal sloAe6l aql ouv/vtv dlsulovl] suo^Vht
'aunr - qlJel^ uea^Alaq uooz et^ sautl s -

€ slaau A11errdA1 aaurrutuol sn.ll'aluaJaluor aql pualle ol sluardrcar drqsre;oqcs auruJalap 'uorlrppe
ul'ZZOZ 'tI Alnf - TT Alnf uaa^ laq plall elualaluof, Jauuns lenuue aqtr ueld gNINN\nd lf,NlU3JNOf,

aauuuoJEJOIU JO

auo llaqf,

uorlelr3!los aell! I,u tuo] vt^o zzoz
69



70



71



72



73



74



75



MAYORS LEADERSHIP AWARD 
Previous Award Winners 

2021: Beth Wytoski, Dayton – Small City Winner 
Rodd Cross, Toledo – Medium City Winner 
Lucy Vinis, Eugene – Large City Winner 
Jeremy Gordon, Falls City – Small City Award of Merit 
Derek Clevenger, Aumsville – Medium City Award of Merit 
Mark Gamba, Milwauki – Large City Award of Merit 

2020: Jerry Lachenbruch, Halsey – Small City Winner 
Paul Becker, Jacksonville – Medium City Winner 
Kyle Palmer, Silverton – Large City Winner 
Dean Sawyer, Newport – Honorable Mention 

2019: Allan Duffy, Elgin – Small City Winner 
Ken Gibson, King City – Medium City Winner 
Jeff Gowing, Cottage Grove – Large City Winner 
Scott Burge, Scappoose – Honorable Mention 

2018: John Cook, Tigard – Large City Winner 
Bob Andrews, Newberg – Medium City Winner 
Pam VanArsdale, Rogue River – Small City Winner 
Gary Wheeler, Medford – Award of Merit 

2017: Sharon Konopa, Albany – Large City Winner 
Dave Stram, Creswell – Small City Winner 

2016: Pete Truax, Forest Grove – Large City Winner 
Gery Schirado, Durham – Small City Winner 
Christine Lundberg, Springfield – Award of Merit 

2015: Hank Williams, Central Point – Large City Winner 
Betty Roppe, Prineville – Small City Winner 
Jerry Willey, Hillsboro – Award of Merit 

2014: George Endicott, Redmond – Large City Winner 
Shirley Kalkhoven, Nehalem – Small City Winner 
Dale De Long, Island City – Small City Winner 
Denny Doyle, Beaverton – Award of Merit 

76



Julie Manning, Corvallis – Award of Merit 

2013: Don Ware, Brownsville – Small City Winner 
Mike Weatherby, Fairview – Large City Winner 
Amy Houghtling, Falls City – Award of Merit 

2012: Lore Christopher, Keizer – Large City Winner 
Shanti Platt, Gervais – Small City Winner 
Suzanne Anderson, Drain – Award of Merit 

2011: Kathryn Figley, Woodburn – Large City Winner 
Gary Williams, Cottage Grove – Small City Winner 

2010: Ken Toomb, Lebanon – Large City Winner 
John McArdle, Independence – Small City Winner 
Diane Pohl, Clatskanie – Award of Merit, Large City 
Jim White, Depoe Bay – Award of Merit, Small City 

2009: Phillip Houk, Pendleton  
Richard Kidd, Forest Grove 
Don Larson, Seaside 

2008: James Fairchild, Dallas – Large City Winner 
Lori Hollingsworth, Lincoln City – Small City Winner 
Keith Mays, Sherwood – Award of Merit, Large City 
Kenneth Toombs, Lebanon – Award of Merit, Large City 
Leon Sherman, Eagle Point – Award of Merit, Small City 

2007: Sid Leiken, Springfield – Large City Winner 
Bob Austin, Estacada – Small City Winner 
Robb Van Cleave, The Dalles – Award of Merit 
Kathy Sherman, Gates – Award of Merit 

2006: Jim Bernard, Milwaukie – Large City Winner 
Marian Telerski, Talent – Small City Winner 
John McArdle, Independence – Award of Merit 
Karl Popoff, Gold Beach – Award of Merit 

2005: Tom Hughes, Hillsboro – Large City Winner 
Harold White, Aumsville – Small City Winner 
Richard Kidd, Forest Grove – Award of Merit 
David Fuller, Wood Village – Award of Merit  

2004: Jim Torrey, Eugene – Large City Winner 
Mark Jones, Newport – Small City Winner 
Charles Becker, Gresham – Award of Merit 

77



Dale De Long, Island City – Award of Merit 

2003: Chuck McLaran, Albany – Large City Winner 
Allen Burns, Florence – Small City Winner 
Rob Drake, Beaverton – Award of Merit 
Bob Ramig, Pendleton – Award of Merit 

2002: Lou Ogden, Tualatin – Large City Winner 
Mark Seltman, Athena – Small City Winner 
Charlotte Lehan, Wilsonville – Award of Merit 
John McArdle, Independence – Award of Merit 

2001: Helen Berg, Corvallis – Large City Winner 
Roger Vonderharr, Fairview – Small City Winner 
Chuck McLaran, Albany – Award of Merit 
Bob Hagbom, Brookings – Award of Merit 

2000: Colleen Johnson, La Grande – Large City Winner 
William Duckett, Riddle – Small City Winner  
Bob Jepsen, Heppner – Award of Merit 
Paul Thalhofer, Troutdale – Award of Merit 
Harold White, Aumsville – Award of Merit 

78



T o  c o n v e n e ,  n e t w o r k ,  t r a i n ,  a n d  e m p o w e r  M a y o r s

1 2 0 1  Cour t  S t .  NE #2 0 0  ▪  SA L EM ,  OR EG ON 9 7 3 0 1  ▪  5 0 3 .5 8 8 .6 5 5 0  ▪  1 .8 0 0 .4 5 2 .0 3 3 8

TO: OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: MEMBERSHIP DRIVE 2022 & 2022 DIRECTORY 

DATE: FEBRUARY 21, 2022 

The 2022 OMA Membership Drive opened on December 15, 2021, and active recruitment efforts ended 
on February 11, 2022.  As of the date of this Memorandum, the OMA has 170 Oregon mayors who are 
members of the Association for calendar year 2022.  LOC staff is in the process of updating its database 
with relevant data for each member of the OMA, while simultaneously updating the OMA listserv with 
relevant email addresses. 

Each year, the OMA builds, publishes, and distributes a Directory.  Pursuant to the contractual 
agreement between the OMA and the LOC, the OMA Board is required to advise the LOC of the desired 
format of the Directory: electronic, paper, and/or a combination of both.  LOC staff has two questions 
for the OMA Board to answer during its March 4th Board meeting, in answering the questions the OMA 
ensures that LOC staff can produce and distribute the Directory before the end of the first quarter. 

1. What format does the OMA Board wish to see the Directory produced in this year: electronic,
paper, and/or a combination of both?

2. Does the Board, or any member thereof, wish to review the Directory before it’s published?

79

R e t u r n  t o  
A g e n d a



T o  c o n v e n e ,  n e t w o r k ,  t r a i n ,  a n d  e m p o w e r  M a y o r s

1 2 0 1  Cour t  S t .  NE #2 0 0  ▪  SA L EM ,  OR EG ON 9 7 3 0 1  ▪  5 0 3 .5 8 8 .6 5 5 0  ▪  1 .8 0 0 .4 5 2 .0 3 3 8

TO: OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: RESPONSES TO RFP FOR 2023 & 2024 SUMMER CONFERENCE 
LOCATIONS 

DATE: FEBRUARY 21, 2022 

During its October 2021 Board of Directors meeting, the OMA decided to specifically target cities and 
venues located away from the I-5 Corridor and the coast for its 2023 and 2024 Summer Conferences.  
LOC staff was directed to issue a targeted RFP for both conferences to the following cities: Hood River; 
Hermiston; Pendleton; Baker City; Ontario; Redmond; Bend; and Klamath Falls.  Cities were asked to 
submit their responses to the RFP no later than Monday, February 21.   

Two cities, Hood River and Klamath Falls, submitted responses indicating they could host either the 
2023 or 2024 Summer Conference (although Klamath Falls seems to indicate 2024 may be a more ideal 
year to host).  Two cities, Pendleton and Hermiston, submitted responses indicating they could host the 
2024 Summer Conference.  All four cities’ proposals are attached herein for reference and review. 

Each proposal has been reviewed by LOC's Interim Operations & Member Engagement Director, Lisa 
Trevino.  Ms. Trevino has advised that all four venues are capable of hosting the OMA Summer 
Conference, although she noted she may wish to tweak some of the proposed contractual language.

Proposed Motion 1: 

Proposed Motion 2: 

I move that the city of {Insert Name} host the 2023 OMA Summer 
Conference, and LOC staff negotiate any relevant contracts on 
behalf of the OMA. 

I move that the city of {Insert Name} host the 2024 OMA Summer 
Conference, and LOC staff negotiate any relevant contracts on 
behalf of the OMA. 

80

R e t u r n  t o  
A g e n d a



2023 and/or 2024 OMA Summer Conference 
Host City Application Form 

Please submit your completed Host City Application Form by Wednesday, December 1, 2021 to: 
Patty Mulvihill, OMA Staff Liaison and LOC General Counsel 

E-mail: pmulvihill@orcities.org; Phone: 503-588-6550

Yes, our city would love to host a future OMA Summer Conference! 

Mayor: Kate McBride 

City: City of Hood River 

Phone:          E-mail: k.mcbride@cityofhoodriver.gov

� 2023 Summer Conference X   2024 Summer Conference 

Please complete the following conference information about your city. 

Lodging Accommodations 

Hotel Name: Best Western Plus Hood River Inn  # of Guestrooms:________ 

Address:  1108 E Marina Dr, Hood River, OR 97031 

Phone: 541-386-2200  Web Site: www.hoodriverinn.com 

Contact Person: Susan Lutton 

Phone: 503-282-2997    E-mail: susanlutton@hoodriverinn.com 
Please note: Susan has spoken with Patty about dates, number of rooms, meeting options, etc. 

Conference Meeting Space 

X  Same as above 

Facility Name:_______________________________________ # of Meeting Rooms:___________ 

Address:__________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone:___________________________ Web Site:________________________________________ 

Contact Person:____________________________________________________________________ 

Phone:___________________________  E-mail:__________________________________________ 

81

mailto:pmulvihill@orcities.org
mailto:k.mcbride@cityofhoodriver.gov
http://www.hoodriverinn.com/
mailto:susanlutton@hoodriverinn.com


Distance from lodging facility: N/A 

Meals, Tours & Events (Copy this page if you have additional locations to be considered) 

1. Location: Hood River Walking Tour

Address: Meet in the lobby of Hood River Inn

Phone:  541-386-1488

Web Site: https://cityofhoodriver.gov/urban-renewal/urban-renewal-waterfront/

Contact Person: Kate McBride or Abigail Elder

Phone: 541-386-5252   E-mail: a.elder@cityofhoodriver.gov

Brief description of location or tour idea: Walking tour highlighting major projects of the
Waterfront Urban Renewal District. This tour will start at the Hood River Inn and proceed
along the waterfront. Participants can either loop back to the hotel (2 miles total) or join for
a longer walk (4 miles total) through downtown and back to Hood River Inn.

Transportation Required?    � Yes     X No   City to Provide?      N/A 

2. Location:_ Indian Creek Golf Course

Address: 3605 Brookside Drive, Hood River

Phone: 541-386-7770   Web Site: www.indiancreekgolf.com

Contact Person: Tyson Jacobs, General Manager

Phone: 541-386-7770     E-mail: tysonj@indiancreekgolf.com

Brief description of location or tour idea: Play a round at Indian Creek Golf Course, one of the

best golf courses in the Northwest. Optional lunch at Divots Restaurant.

Transportation Required?      X Yes   � No   City to Provide?      � Yes    X No 

3. Location:_Wine Tasting on the Fruit Loop Tour

Address:____________________________________________________________________

Phone: 541-490-7713    Web Site: https://hoodriverfruitloop.com/

Contact Person: Jean Godfrey

Phone: 541-490-7713     E-mail: godfreyjean1949@gmail.com

Brief description of location or tour idea: Join us for a scenic drive through the Hood River
Valley by the base of the majestic Mount Hood. Visitors can learn about how the wines,
apples, pears, cherries and grapes are produced while enjoying the sites and tastes of the
region. Back in town, the tour will stop by 780 Rand Rd, the city’s innovative affordable
housing project under construction.
Transportation Required?      X Yes          � No         City to Provide?      X Yes          � No

82

https://cityofhoodriver.gov/urban-renewal/urban-renewal-waterfront/
mailto:a.elder@cityofhoodriver.gov
https://hoodriverfruitloop.com/


Suggested Host City Contributions 
Welcome Gift Bags for Mayors      X Yes, we can provide these.   � No, we’re unable to provide. 

Thursday Welcome Reception       X Yes, we can sponsor.    � No, we can’t sponsor this event. 

Other Suggestions (briefly describe): 

1. Informal gathering at Waterfront Park, with visitors purchasing their own meals from food trucks on-
site.

83



BEST WESTERN PLUS Hood River Inn 
1108 E Marina Way 
Hood River OR 97031 
www.hoodriverinn.com 

RE: Oregon Mayors Association

Dear Patty and All:

Thanks so much for your interest in the Best Western Hood River Inn.  We’d love to 
have the Mayor’s Association with us in Hood River and the beautiful Columbia River
Gorge. We look forward to your favorable response to this information.  We would ask
that you consider a Sunday to Tuesday conference schedule the last week of August.
Those dates would be available in both 2023 and 2024.

In the last year and a half our new conference center was completed. Based on the
agenda you provided, OMA would fit perfectly there.  We have made a significant
investment in audio visual and can do hybrid meetings on the large screen with the
installed cameras.  You can be sure you will be pleased.

Riverside Restaurant and Lounge

Riverside, the only Hood River restaurant situated on the edge of the Columbia River,
offers panoramic views of the Gorge. Chef Mark DeResta and his staff prepare meals
using fresh, all natural often locally sourced ingredients. The same wonderful staff also
prepares our banquet meals.

We are the place to be in the Gorge for sampling the wines and beers our area is known
for. In fact, our wine list has received the Wine Spectator award ten years in a row. This
is not your typical hotel restaurant and lounge.

Extras

Wireless internet access is available free-of-charge throughout the hotel, guest rooms
and meeting space. Our pool facility with hot tub, sauna and fitness center is situated on
the banks of the river and heated year around! And our business center is available
without charge for computer and printing use.

Banquet and Meeting Space

We would plan for your general sessions, meals and break-outs to take place in our
Conference Center. Based on an attendance of 120 people we would provide our Gorge

84



Room for meetings and meals. Registration would take place in the new Atrium lobby. 
Break-outs could take place in the Trillium East and West. 
 
Your event will require a breakfast and lunch on Monday and Tuesday and dinner on  
Tuesday for the full attendance.  The food and beverage revenue requirement would be 
$13,000 not to include service charge.  I have attached our current banquet menus. 
 
       
Meeting room rental for the three spaces will be reduced to a one time set-up fee of 
$750.00.  This assumes the rooms are set one time and will remain that way for the 
duration of the conference.  I have also attached our audio visual list which explains 
what is available in the conference center. 
 
Overnight Guest Rooms 
  
We offer 194 guest rooms and suites. Guest room rates cannot be confirmed until one 
year in advance, but to give you an idea if this event was taking place in 2022 for the last 
week of August room rates would be: 
 
$179.00 single or double for a limited number of economy rooms. 
$199.00 single or double for standard non-view rooms. 
$229.00 single or double for river view rooms. 
Area tax is 9.5% and rooms with two beds are $10 per night additional. Please note 
these special group rates do not include breakfast. The rates above do not apply for 
Friday and Saturday nights. 
 
Do let me know if you have additional questions.  I will attach a couple pictures of the 
new space in a subsequent email.  Patty, I’d still love to show it to you in person. So, I 
will wait to hear when you have a convenient time to visit. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Susan Lutton 
Business Development 
Best Western Plus Hood River Inn 
503-282-2997 
 

85



i n  t h e  h e a r t  o f  t h e  c o l u m b i a  r i v e r  g o r g e

86



Location
The Best Western Plus Hood River Inn offers a haven in the heart of the 
Columbia River Gorge. The Inn is known for rustic elegance and staffed with 
folks with warm and easy going attitudes. Our location on the banks of the 
river is an easy and  beautiful 60-minute drive from Portland.

Accommodations
The Inn offers 194 well-appointed guestrooms as well as one, two and three 
bedroom suites.  Many rooms offer river views, private balconies or patios and 
of course, everything else you would expect from a full-service hotel. Wireless 
internet is available throughout the Inn free of charge.

Dining and Entertainment
Hood River’s only waterfront dining is available at Riverside. A focus on Italian 
cuisine in a warm, contemporary atmosphere has made Riverside an area 
favorite.  Riverside’s expansive floor to ceiling windows and outside decks 
allow you to enjoy the area’s natural beauty. Our inviting lobby bar Cebu 
offers casual dining and a truly vibrant social scene. Cebu’s full bar features 
our award-winning wine list as well as 12 local and regional beers on tap.  

Hotel Amenities
We think our outdoor heated pool is one of the most gorgeous in the state. Our 
fitness center features treadmill and elliptical machines with personal televisions, 
sauna and indoor spa, changing rooms and lockers. From our private beach 
area, a riverside path (perfect for strolling or running) connects the Inn with the 
rest of the Hood River waterfront, marina and downtown Hood River. 

Local Attractions
The Hood River area offers one of the most complete outdoor 
playgrounds in the world. Hiking, windsurfing, kiteboarding, stand up 
paddle boarding, cycling, fishing, whitewater rafting, kayaking, golfing, 
skiing and snowboarding are among just some of the activities available. 
You should also visit our area’s museums, tour the Fruit Loop, or taste 
some of the area’s wine or craft beer.

Services
The Best Western Plus Hood River Inn offers ample complimentary parking. 
Starbucks, McDonald’s, convenience stores and two service stations are 
adjacent to the Inn. The Hood River County Visitor’s Center is located just 
two blocks away and can be reached by our riverfront walking path. Our 
staff, many of whom have been at the Inn for over two decades, are eager to 
offer you assistance whenever possible.

Meetings and Events in Hood River
The Best Western Plus Hood River Inn can comfortably accommodate 
groups up to 400. We offer 8 meeting rooms totaling 15,000 square feet 
of space perfect for social events, large conferences or smaller board 
meetings and retreats.  

Hood River Inn
1108 E. Marina Way, Hood River, OR 97031
(541) 386-2200  fax (541) 386-7295
www.hoodriverinn.com • 1-800-828-7873

87

http://www.hoodriverinn.com


With our addition to the Gorge Room we now offer up to 15,000 feet 
of meeting space. Soaring ceilings, nice light and room for vendors 
are just a few of the features you will enjoy. The Atrium allows for 
registration, exhibit tables and reception space. The 1890 square 
foot Trillium Room addition breaks down into two spaces perfect 
for one large meeting or break-out sessions. And don’t forget your 
attendees get to enjoy entrees from Riverside’s delicious catering 
menu. While this space is new, our commitment to friendly service 
and great food remains the same. Call us today. 541-386-8901

Room Theater Receptions Class Room Meal Functions Square Feet Dimensions

Gorge Room 400 200 300 4400 67’x 66’

Trillium Room 156 105 136 1890 62’x31’

Trillium East 85 70 80 1260 41’x31’

Trillium West 42 35 40 630 21’x31’

The Atrium N/A N/A N/A 1220 45’x21’

1108 E. Marina Way, Hood River, OR 97031 • p: 541-386-8901  f: 541-386-7295 Reservations: 800-828-7873 • www.hoodriverinn.com

THE COLUMBIA GORGE CONFERENCE CENTER

88

http://www.hoodriverinn.com


The Columbia Room is our second largest room and is located up a wide 
staircase with access directly from of the lobby (wheelchair elevator 
access is available as well). The mezzanine entrance is perfect for your 
registration area. Windows in the back let in natural light and area artwork 
brightens the space nicely. This room can comfortably accommodate 
social groups or events for up to 250 people. It’s central location allows 
for quick access to other hotel amenities and guest rooms.
 

1108 E. Marina Way, Hood River, OR 97031 • p: 541-386-8901  f: 541-386-7295 Reservations: 800-828-7873 • www.hoodriverinn.com

COLUMBIA ROOM

Theater 
Receptions

Class 
Room

U-Shape Meal 
Functions

Square 
Feet

Dimensions

250 150 50 250 3250 61’x46’

pillars mezzanine

wheelchair
lift

lobby

89

http://www.hoodriverinn.com


The Riverview Room is a great option if you are interested in 
spectacular views! This room is located in the West Wing and 
offers two balconies so guests can enjoy uninterrupted sights of 
the Columbia River, Hood River Bridge and the surrounding bluffs. 
This is an excellent room for mid-size groups or a breakout room 
for larger conferences. Perfect for meetings or banquet meals, it 
can seat up to 80 people. 

1108 E. Marina Way, Hood River, OR 97031 • p: 541-386-8901  f: 541-386-7295 Reservations: 800-828-7873 • www.hoodriverinn.com

RIVERVIEW ROOM

Theater 
Receptions

U-Shape Conf. 
Style

Meal 
Functions

Square 
Feet

Dimensions

100 45 40 80 1250 25’x49’

90

http://www.hoodriverinn.com


Shoreline is a semi-private area adjacent to Riverside. With a full-
service bar and access to an expansive deck and patio overlooking 
the Columbia River, this room can accommodate up to 64 people for 
reception or meal functions inside, with seating for an additional 75 
people on the outdoor deck. 

1108 E. Marina Way, Hood River, OR 97031 • p: 541-386-8901  f: 541-386-7295 Reservations: 800-828-7873 • www.hoodriverinn.com

SHORELINE ROOM, DECK & PATIO

Theater 
Receptions

U-Shape Meal 
Functions

Square 
Feet

Dimensions

75 28 80 1000 25’x40’

hallway

Shoreline
Room

Shoreline Deck

91

http://www.hoodriverinn.com


The Mountainview Room is also located in 
the Inn’s West Wing across the hall from 
the Riverview Room. Expansive windows 
across the south facing side provide plenty 
of natural lighting. The room is convenient 
to the elevator and restrooms, and is just 
inside the West Wing entrance to the Inn. 
Both Mountainview and Riverview are 
easily served by Riverside’s main kitchen 
and Cebu Lounge. The Mountainview 
Room offers groups of up to 60 people an 
ideal meeting or dining climate. 

1108 E. Marina Way, Hood River, OR 97031 • p: 541-386-8901  f: 541-386-7295 Reservations: 800-828-7873 • www.hoodriverinn.com

MOUNTAINVIEW ROOM

MT HOOD & MT ADAMS ROOMS

Theater 
Receptions

Class 
Room

Conf. 
Style

Meal 
Functions

Square 
Feet

Dimensions

65 30 30 40 800 28’x29’

West Wing hallway

The Mt. Adams and Mt. Hood Rooms are ideal for concurrent sessions along 
with the Columbia Room as they are located on the same level directly in front 
of the room. They are also accessible via stairs through Riverside restaurant. 
Individually, each room seats up to 35 people for meals and meeting functions.  
They also feature built in flat screen TVs.

Theater 
Receptions

Class 
Room

Conf. 
Style

Meal 
Functions

Square 
Feet

Dimensions

35 20 20 24 375 25’x16’

35 20 20 24 375 25’x16’

Mt. Adams Mt. Hood Hood River Inn

Mountainview Room

92

http://www.hoodriverinn.com


Audio & Video Items Room Setup and Service Items

Equipment

AV Presentation Cart/Table (Screen/Power Not Included)

House Sound Connection (Audio Device Not Included)

Cables for Projectors (HDMI, VGA, Mac Adapters)

Dedicated In Room AV Tech (Minimum of 4 hours)

50” Smart 4K UHD Mobile TV

Easel Only

Extension Cord/Power Strip/Tape Down

External Computer Speakers

Flip Chart w/Easel & Markers

Internet Access Hardwired

Internet Access WIFI

Laptop Computer (Windows Based)

Laser Pointer/Slide Advancement Remote

Microphone – Handheld/Standing Wireless

Microphone – Lavalier/Lapel/Headset Wireless

Microphone – Table Top Wireless

PA/Sound System with 2 Speakers (Shoreline Room)

Speaker/Conference Phone

Teleconference/Videoconferencing Capabilities
Discuss with your planner

White Board Easel with Markers & Eraser

Complimentary

$50.00 ea.

$10.00 ea.

Discuss with your planner

$125.00

1 Complimentary/$15 ea.

$10.00 per set

$25.00 per set

$45.00 per pad

$50.00 up to 1 connection

Complimentary

$100.00 ea.

$20.00 ea.

$50.00 ea.

$100.00 ea.

$50.00 ea.

$200.00 ea.

$75.00 ea.

Starting cost $400.00

$15.00 ea.

Arch (Wedding Ceremonies)

Cake Service –Tier 1 (up to 25 guests)

Cake Service –Tier 2 (50-100 guests)

Cake Service –Tier 3 (100+ guests)

Cake Table
(Includes cake knife, serving utensil, plates, napkins, & forks)

Centerpiece Mirrors & Basic Centerpieces

Chair Covers

Coat Rack

Dance Floor (Gorge or Columbia Rooms Only)

DJ Table

Exhibitor/Vendor Table w/ access to power (Draped)

Exhibitor/Vendor Table w/o access to power (Draped)

Flag (Oregon, Washington, American)

Gift/Guestbook/Registration/Resource Table

Head Table

High Boy/Cocktail Table

Lamps (Standing or Clip-On)

Podium (Standing or Tabletop) & Table at Podium (2ft x 2ft)

Risers (8ft x 6ft sections)

Votive Candles & Candle Holders

$100.00

$25. 00

$50. 00

$100.00

Complimentary

Complimentary

$5.00 each

Complimentary

$200.00

Complimentary

$70.00 ea.

$50.00 ea.

Complimentary

Complimentary

Complimentary

Complimentary

$10. 00 ea.

Complimentary

$50.00

Complimentary

Lighting arrangements, custom linens & table decorations are available.
Please ask your Event Coordinator for more details.

93



Silver Package  - $50 day
Includes the Following:

AV Table (2ft x 2ft)

 Extension Cord with Power strip

Projection Screen

HMDI, VGA, Lightning or Thunderbolt Mac Adapters

Gold Package  - $200 day
Includes the Following:

AV Table (2ft x 2ft)

Extension Cord with Power Strip

Projection Screen

HMDI, VGA, Lightning or Thunderbolt Mac Adapters

3,000 Lumens LCD Projector

Trillium Room Package
Includes the Following:

5,000 Lumens LCD Projector with Wireless Projecting Capabilities 

and Audio $300.00 per day

Add 

85” Wall Mounted LCD TV’s 
$100.00 each per day

 Online Streaming Camera 
$400.00 per day

Gorge  Room Package
Includes the Following:

9,000 Lumens LCD Projector with Wireless Projecting Capabilities 
and Audio $400.00 per day

Add 

 Online Streaming Camera 
$400.00 per day

LCD Projection Packages
Prices are per day per space. Inventory is subject to availability.

Add A/V Technician at Additional cost. Please 
Discuss this Option with Your Event Coordinator

Add A/V Technician at Additional cost. Please 
Discuss this Option with Your Event Coordinator

94



Audio
Microphones

Gorge
The Gorge room is equipped with two wireless handheld microphone 

systems and one wireless lapel microphone system.

Trillium
The Trillium room is equipped with two wireless handheld microphone 

systems, and one wireless lapel microphone system.

Speakers
Gorge

The Gorge room is equipped with four Peavy PVX-12 speakers. Two 
speakers in the front and two in the back of the room provide a surround 

sound style system. 

Trillium
The Trillium room is equipped with fourteen Episode ECS-800-IC-6 
Commercial Series 70-Volt In-Ceiling Speakers, providing the space 

with full sound from front to back.

Atrium
The Atrium is equipped with four pendant speakers providing ambiance 

through our house Pandora account, or wirelessly through your own 
device or smartphone.

Music
The Conference Center is equipped with an audio system that is linked to 
our house Pandora account, or you can  connect wirelessly through your 

own audio device or smartphone. 

Visual
Projectors

Gorge
The Gorge room is equipped with a single Epson 9,000 lumens 

WUXGA 3LCD Laser Projector with 4K Enhancement. The projector is 
run through a standard wall jack, our in-house rack computer, or 

wirelessly via Airplay, Chromecast, etc.

Trillium
The Trillium room is equipped with an Epson Powerlite 4770W 5,000 

lumens WXGA 3LCD projector. The projector is run through a 
standard wall jack, our in-house rack computer, or wirelessly via 

Airplay, Chromecast, etc.

Projection Screens
Gorge

The Gorge room is equipped with a 9’X16’ projection screen.

Trillium
The Trillium room is equipped with an 8’X14’ projection screen.

TV Screens
The Trillium room will be equipped with three 85” Sony Motionflow 
4K HDR Smart HDTV’s on the North Wall. The TV’s can either mirror 

what is presented on the screen, allowing those further from the 
screen the ability to see more clearly, or they can be used in lieu of the 

projection screen.

Streaming Cameras
Both the Gorge room and Trillium room are equipped with a fully 

adjustable Atlona HDVS camera, giving you the ability to stream your 
conference on any platform (Zoom, Skype, Facebook Live etc).

AV Specs for Conference Center

95



Physical
Pin Boards

The Gorge room is equipped with two self-healing pin boards, one 
4’X16’ on the North wall, and one 4’ X16’ on the South wall. The Trillium 

room is equipped with four self-healing pin boards, one 4’X24’ on the 
West Wall (front of the room), one 4’X21’ on the East wall, and two on 

the South wall, one is 4’X16’ the other is 4’X10’

Trillium Dividing Wall
The Trillium room can be split into two separate spaces with a soundproof 

dividing wall. 

The West end of the Trillium room is the smaller of the two spaces at 
630 square feet and is equipped with a projection screen with mounted 

projector, and one 85” wall mounted TV. 

The East end of the Trillium room is the bigger of the two spaces at 1260 
square feet and is equipped with a projection screen with mounted 

projector, two 85” TV’s, and a full audio system.

Wireless Capability
The Conference Center provides 2 X 100Mbps connections setup to load 

balance from two different providers. They do limit each connection to a 
max of 20Mbps per user. Typically, a VPN or installed firewalls from 

guest computers can cause delays. If there are any, we do have a laptop 
on site that can be rented in case there are issues.

Lighting
Stage Lights

The Gorge room is equipped with a set of 6 SALIOT stage lights. These 
lights are fully customizable and can be adjusted remotely by staff.

Stage Light Scenes
The SALIOT stage light system can be pre-set with light scenes. A 
light scene gives you the ability to pre-set the lights to perform a 

multitude of functions and initiate that function with the push of a 
button by staff.

Main Lights
The Conference Center is equipped with fully customizable LED 

lighting in each space. This system allows us to adjust the lighting 
remotely to fit whatever need you have for your conference or meal 

function.

Pendant Lights and Copper Centerpiece
The Gorge room features four pendant lights in each corner of the 

room, as well as a copper centerpiece light fixture. The Atrium 
similarly features four pendant lights.

Streaming Cameras
Both the Gorge room and Trillium room are equipped with a fully 

adjustable Atlona HDVS camera, giving you the ability to stream your 
conference on any platform (Zoom, Skype, Facebook Live etc).

AV Specs for Conference Center

96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



 

Eastern Oregon  
Trade and Event Center 

 
The City of Hermiston 

 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

The City of Hermiston and the Eastern Oregon Trade and Event Center (EOTEC) respectfully submit this 
response to host the Oregon Mayor’s Association (OMA) 2024 Summer Conference on July 18 – 20, 
2024. 

RFP Requirements 

1. Mayor Dave Drotzmann is in good standing with the OMA  
2. Conference meeting space – EOTEC facilities (Please see attached sheet for more information) 

allow us to meet all of the space needs outlined in your RFP. 
3. Lodging Accommodations – The lodging facilities are not adjacent to the EOTEC facility. 

However, as attendees at this year’s LOC Spring Conference will see driving between those 
locations will not be inconvenient. 

4. Meals, Tours, Events – Two options for Event locations are a) one of two regional wineries, b) at 
the City’s wonderful outdoor aquatic center. 

5. Transportation – The City is willing to provide for any transportation needs related to all related 
off-site events. 

6. Host City Traditions – The City is willing to provide gift bags and host a Thursday evening 
welcome reception. 

Thank you for your consideration of our RFP response.  

137



Eastern Oregon Trade and Event Center 
The Eastern Oregon Trade & Event Center is 25,500 square feet of innovative and attractive event space. 
The facility offers a large exhibitor hall and three meeting rooms, providing a venue for meetings, 
conventions, tradeshows and banquets, as well as private gatherings.  

3 separate meeting rooms that are all equipped with their own av systems with sound damping barrier 
to keep your event inside your room. Every room has access to WIFI connectivity with a separate system 
for vendors and VIP. 

We have a full equipment commercial kitchen that makes cater an event a piece of cake or if you would 
like to prepare your own food, hire your own chef or caterer, we are ready to make your meal 
unforgettable. Comfortable tables that seat up to ten and chairs with quality linen will put the final 
touches on your event. 

Landscaped grounds are available for hosting sporting events, car shows, RV rallies, etc. There is also 
parking lot space available for motorcycle safety courses, bicycle safety courses, farm equipment shows, 
etc. 

Lush, green grounds for those attending your event that can be used for additional activities. Outdoor 
amenities include restrooms, electric and water for RV’S, food trucks and concession stands.  

Plenty of paved lighted parking and flat spaces with ample Handicapped parking is the beginning of out 
ADA compliance facility. 

EOTEC Staff is the backbone of your facility rental. In the time of covid EOTEC follows the most stringent 
of sanitizing process implementing the most effect methods of cleaning and sanitizing to stop the spread 
without intruding on your event or you participants.  

 

138



139



140



141



142



143



144



T o  c o n v e n e ,  n e t w o r k ,  t r a i n ,  a n d  e m p o w e r  M a y o r s

1 2 0 1  Cour t  S t .  NE #2 0 0  ▪  SA L EM ,  OR EG ON 9 7 3 0 1  ▪  5 0 3 .5 8 8 .6 5 5 0  ▪  1 .8 0 0 .4 5 2 .0 3 3 8

TO: OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: 2022 BUDGET 

DATE: FEBRUARY 15, 2022 

The 2022 OMA Budget has been prepared in accordance with the direction of the Board during its 
December 3, 2021.  This year, in addition to the standard budget document, LOC staff has also prepared 
a narrative document to provide better clarity on the types of expenses and revenue related to each line 
of the Budget. 

Proposed Motion: I move adoption of the 2022 Budget as presented by LOC staff.   

145

R e t u r n  t o  
A g e n d a



S T R E N G T H  I N  U N I T Y

1 2 0 1  Cour t  S t .  NE #2 0 0  ▪  SA L EM ,  OR EG ON 9 7 3 0 1  ▪  5 0 3 .5 8 8 .6 5 5 0  ▪  1 .8 0 0 .4 5 2 .0 3 3 8

2022 OMA Budget 
INCOME 

The OMA has several sources of income. Income sources generally include the following:  
unrestricted cash reserves; membership dues; registration fees from workshops and 
conferences; sponsorship dollars; and income associated with the silent auction typically 
held in conjunction with the Annual Summer Conference. 

Beginning Cash – Unrestricted 
$80,577.  This is the amount of cash reserves available to the OMA. 

Beginning Cash – Scholarship Fund 
$12,991.  This is the amount of cash available in the Scholarship Fund.  Income from this 
Fund can only be used to provide Oregon mayors scholarships to attend OMA functions. 

4-4001 – Membership Dues
$21,000.  Income received from membership dues.

4-4700 – Spring Workshop
$3,000.  Income received from the registration fees paid by attendees of the Spring
Workshop.

4-4753 – Fall Workshop
$6,000.  Income received from the registration fees paid by attendees of the Fall Workshop.

4-4760 – Mayor’s Sponsorships
$20,000.  Income received from persons wishes to sponsor the OMA.  While most of the
income associated with this line is related to sponsorship dollars from the Annual Summer
Conference, any sponsorship dollars received by the OMA are to be deposited into this
line.

4-4660 – Silent Auction
$4,000.  Income received from events and activities associated with the silent auction held
in conjunction with the Annual Summer Conference.

4-4754 – Summer Conference
$26,000.  Income received from the registration fees paid by attendees of the Annual
Summer Conference.

146



EXPENSES 

The OMA has several categories of expenses.  Expense generally include the following:  
the Spring Workshop; the Annual Summer Conference; the Fall Workshop; and general 
operating expenditures. 

Annual Summer Conference 

4-5302 – Summer Conference LOC Staff Expenses/Fees
$1,100.  Expenses associated with the LOC administrative staff support person working the
Annual Summer Conference.  Expenses may include hotel room, mileage, meals, and other
reasonable travel expenses.

4-5307 – Summer Conference Venue Rental
$5,00.  Expenses associated with reserving the venue used to host the Annual Summer
Conference.

4-5308 – Summer Conference Food & Beverage
$18,000.  Expenses associated with providing attendees of the Annual Summer Conference
food and beverages.  Note, this line is not used to cover food and beverage expenses
associated with the silent auction event.

4-5309 – Summer Conference Hotel Expenses
$7,200.  Expenses associated with providing the OMA Board President hotel
accommodation at the Annual Summer Conference.  This line may also be used to cover
the hotel expenses of OMA Board members, provided their hotel expenses have been
specifically authorized by the OMA Board of Directors.  The line may also be used to
cover the hotel expenses of any speaker, aside from the Keynote Speaker, presenting at the
Annual Summer Conference.

4-5304 – Summer Conference Activity Fees
$1,000.  Expenses are those not otherwise accounted for in covering the costs associated
with the Annual Summer Conference.  Examples of appropriate expenses paid for from this
line include: golf scramble prizes, table rental, and fees associated with OMA activities or
events held in conjunction with the Annual Summer Conference.

4-5313 – Summer Conference Speakers
$5,000.  Expenses associated with the Keynote Speaker at the Annua Summer Conference.
Expenses may include a speaker fee and/or reasonable travel expenses

4-5314 – Summer Conference Postage/Printing
$650.  Expenses associated with any postage and printing costs associated with the Annual
Summer Conference.  Examples of expenses include:  printed programs, printed signs, and
displays of Student Contest entries.

4-5390 – Summer Conference Scholarships
$4,500.  Expenses associated with providing OMA membership scholarships to attend the
Annual Summer Conference.  Expenses may include: conference registration fee and
reasonable travel/accommodation expenses.

147



Spring Workshop 

4-5357 – Spring Workshop Venue Rental
$500.  Expenses associated with reserving the venue used to host the Spring Workshop.

4-5358 – Spring Workshop Food & Beverage
$1,500.  Expenses associated with providing attendees of the Spring Workshop food and
beverages.

4-5359 – Spring Workshop Hotel Expenses
$2,250.  Expenses associated with providing the OMA Board President hotel
accommodation at the Spring Workshop.  This line may also be used to cover the hotel
expenses of OMA Board members, provided their hotel expenses have been specifically
authorized by the OMA Board of Directors.

4-5360 – Spring Workshop Speaker Fees
$1,500.  Expenses associated with the person speaking at the Spring Workshop.  Expenses
may include a speaker fee and/or reasonable travel expenses.

Fall Workshop 

4-5404 – Fall Workshop Venue Rental
$500.  Expenses associated with reserving the venue used to host the Fall Workshop.

4-5405 – Fall Workshop Food & Beverage
$1,500.  Expenses associated with providing attendees of the Fall Workshop food and
beverages.

4-5406 – Fall Workshop Hotel Expenses
$2,025.  Expenses associated with providing the OMA Board President hotel
accommodation at the Fall Workshop.  This line may also be used to cover the hotel
expenses of OMA Board members, provided their hotel expenses have been specifically
authorized by the OMA Board of Directors.

4-5407 – Fall Workshop Speaker
$2,000.  Expenses associated with the person speaking at the Fall Workshop.  Expenses
may include a speaker fee and/or reasonable travel expenses.

New Mayor Training 

4-5012 – New Mayor Training
$7,000.  Expenses associated with providing a new mayor training to be held in connection
with the LOC’s Elected Essentials training program.  Expenses may include:  venue rental
fees; food and beverage costs; hotel expenses incurred by OMA Board members; and
mileage reimbursement for OMA Board members.

148



General Operating Expenses 

4-6013 – Directory
$1,000.  Expenses incurred to pay for the printing and shipping costs associated with the
annual OMA Directory.

4-6017 – LOC Services
$25,375.  Expenses which cover the administrative fees charged by the LOC for
administering the OMA programs and services.

4-6018 – Mayor’s Board Expenses
$14,500.  Expenses to cover the costs of holding in-person OMA Board meetings.  Covered
expenses may include:  venue rental fees; food and beverage costs; and reasonable travel
expenses by Board members.

4-6023 – Mayor’s Contest
$3,500.  Expenses to cover all costs associate with the annual If I Were a Mayor Contest.
Expenditures from this include the awards issued to the contestants and reasonable travel
expenses for award recipients to attend the awards dinner.

4-6025 – Miscellaneous
$750.  Expenses to cover other unanticipated costs incurred by the OMA.

4-6028 – Newsletter
$3,000.  Expenses to cover the cost of printing and shipping the quarterly OMA Newsletter.

4-6030 – Postage
$1,000.  Expenses to cover any needed postage incurred by the OMA.  This is not intended
to cover the cost of shipping the Directory or the Newsletter.

4-6031 – Copy, Fax, Printing
$100.  Expenses to cover any copy, fax or printing fees incurred by the OMA not otherwise
budgeted for elsewhere.

4-6033 – Supplies/Marketing
$2,500.  Expenses incurred to purchase supplies and marketing materials.  This line can be
used to purchase thank you cards and other similarly situated materials.

4-6040 – WEB
$1,800.  Expenses incurred by Municode for hosting the OMA website.

4-6041 – Listserv
$750.  Expenses used to pay the LOC a yearly fee for hosting the OMA listserv.

149



2019 
Actual

2020 
Actual

2021 
Budget

2021 
Year End

2022 
Proposed 
Budget

2022 
Approved 

Budget

General Fund
INCOME

Beginning Cash ‐ Unrestricted 57,674 75,811 75,047 75,047 80,577

Beginning Cash ‐ Scholarship Fund 9,482 9,582 10,672 10,672 12,991

4‐4001 Membership Dues 23,736 21,644 22,000 17,720 21,000

4‐4700 OMA Spring Workshop 12,288 3,000

4‐4753 Fall Workshop 6,075 675 5,500 0 6,000

4‐4760 Mayor's Sponsorships 23,750 12,750 24,000 21,750 20,000

4‐4660 Silent Auction 4,580 1,090 3,900 6,310 4,000

4‐4754 Summer Conference 20,305 2,006 25,000 31,401 26,000

Total Revenue and Beginning Cash 145,602 123,558 166,119 175,188 173,568

EXPENSE

Conference Expenses
Summer Conference Expenses

4‐5302 Summer Conference LOC Staff Expenses/Fees 4,285 1,100

4‐5307 Summer Conference Venue Rental  20,155 1,317 21,800 24,239 5,000

4‐5308 Summer Conference Food and Beverage 18,000

4‐5309 Summer Conference Hotel Expenses 7,200

4‐5304 Summer Conference Activity Fees 450 0 1,300 4,632 1,000

4‐5313 Summer Conference Speakers 8,559 2,340 5,000 10,118 5,000

4‐5314 Summer Conference Postage / Printing 703 0 1,000 421 650

4‐5390 Summer Conference Scholarships 4,830 0 26,750 3,991 4,500

38,983 3,657 55,850 43,401 42,450

Spring Workshop Expenses
4‐5357 Spring Workshop Venue Rental 500

4‐5358 Spring Workshop Food & Beverage 1,500

4‐5359 Spring Workshop Hotel Expenses 2,250

4‐5360 Spring Workshop Speaker Fees 1,500

0 0 0 0 5,750

Fall Workshop Expenses
4‐5404 Fall Workshop Venue Rental 6,491 261 5,000 0 500

4‐5405 Fall Workshop Food and Beverage 1,500

4‐5406 Fall Workshop Hotel Expenses 2,025

4‐5407 Fall Workshop ‐ Speaker 422 0 5,000 0 2,000

6,914 261 10,000 0 15,525

4‐5012 New Mayor Training
0 0 0 0 7,000

0 0 0 0 7,000

Sub‐Total ‐ Cost of Events 38,983 3,657 55,850 43,401 55,200

Operating Expenses
Contingency 0 0 57,569 45,077

4‐6013 Directory 1,454 0 500 1,342 1,000

4‐6017 LOC Services 10,945 25,000 25,750 25,000 25,375

4‐6018 Mayor's Board Expense 1,239 137 2,500 2,166 14,500

4‐6023 Mayor's Contest 838 2,871 3,500 2,895 3,500

4‐6025 Miscellaneous 544 475 600 1,917 750

4‐6028 Newsletter 2,930 588 2,500 3,000

4‐6030 Postage 810 0 1,000 232 1,000

OREGON MAYORS ASSOCIATION

2022 BUDGET

150



2019 
Actual

2020 
Actual

2021 
Budget

2021 
Year End

2022 
Proposed 
Budget

2022 
Approved 

Budget

OREGON MAYORS ASSOCIATION

2022 BUDGET

4‐6031 Copy, Fax, Printing 98 0 100 0 100

4‐6033 Supplies / Marketing 1,437 0 1,000 816 2,500

4‐6040 WEB 2,300 4,100 4,500 3,100 1,800

4‐6041 Listserv 1,300 750 750 750 750

23,895 33,921 100,269 38,219 99,352

Total Expense 62,878 37,578 156,119 81,620 154,552

Net Income Less Beginning Cash 15,568 587 ‐75,719 7,849 ‐74,552
Net Income including Beginning Cash 82,724 85,980 10,000 93,568 19,016

Transfers Operating to Scholarship 0 0 0 0 0

Total Transfers 0 0 0 0 0

Ending Cash
 ‐ Unrestricted 82,724 75,047 0 80,577 6,025

 ‐ Scholarship Fund 9,233 10,672 12,178 12,991 12,991

Total Ending Cash 91,957 85,719 12,178 93,568 19,016

151



T o  c o n v e n e ,  n e t w o r k ,  t r a i n ,  a n d  e m p o w e r  M a y o r s

1 2 0 1  Cour t  S t .  NE #2 0 0  ▪  SA L EM ,  OR EG ON 9 7 3 0 1  ▪  5 0 3 .5 8 8 .6 5 5 0  ▪  1 .8 0 0 .4 5 2 .0 3 3 8

TO: OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING POLICY REGARDING THIRD PARTY 
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION DISTRIBUTION 

DATE: FEBRUARY 16, 2022 

During the December 3, 2022, the OMA Board of Directors asked staff to prepare a resolution 
establishing a policy regarding third party requests for information distribution.  The policy was to do 
three things: clarify that distribution can only occur if the materials are related to the OMA’s mission; 
establish the President as the person responsible for deciding if distribution is appropriate; and allow for 
the President to seek input from the Board prior to authorizing the distribution.  Attached herein is 
staff’s proposed resolution. 

Proposed Motion: I move adoption of Resolution 2022-2 which establishes the OMA policy on 
how and when third party requests for information distribution are granted. 

152

R e t u r n  t o  
A g e n d a



RESOLUTION NO: 2022-2 
WHEREAS,  it is not uncommon for persons to request that certain information in their 

possession be distributed to OMA members; and 

WHEREAS, it is the OMA Board of Director’s policy that before distributing any information 
to the OMA membership, the contents of that information should be reviewed for 
objectivity, quality, utility, integrity, and support of the OMA’s mission and its 
purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the OMA Board of Directors recognizes that at times requests for the distribution 
of information to OMA members may be time sensitive and thereby reasonably 
impractical to assume that such requests should always be vetted by the full 
Board, the Board finds that the OMA President is more than capable of discerning 
the appropriateness of distributing any such information. 

NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED by the OMA Board of Directors as follows: 

1. Standard of Quality.  Before any information from a third party can be distributed to the
OMA membership, it must be reviewed by the OMA President for objectivity, quality,
utility, integrity, and be found to support the OMA’s mission and its purposes, as those
purposes are outlined in the OMA’s governing documents.

2. Authorization for Distribution.  The OMA President has the authority to grant or deny
LOC staff permission to distribute any information received by third parties to the OMA
membership.  If the OMA President believes the request for distribution warrants the
opinion of the Board of Directors, the President has the authority to convene a special
meeting of the Board to review said request.

3. Limitations on LOC Staff.  The LOC staff shall not distribute information from a third
party to the OMA membership unless they have the permission from either the LOC
President or OMA Board of Directors to do so.  For purposes of this policy a third party
is any person or entity that is not the OMA or the LOC.

Adopted this 4th day of March 2022, by the OMA Board of Directors. 

____________________________________ 
Jeff Gowing, President 
Mayor of Cottage Grove, Oregon 

153



T o  c o n v e n e ,  n e t w o r k ,  t r a i n ,  a n d  e m p o w e r  M a y o r s

1 2 0 1  Cour t  S t .  NE #2 0 0  ▪  SA L EM ,  OR EG ON 9 7 3 0 1  ▪  5 0 3 .5 8 8 .6 5 5 0  ▪  1 .8 0 0 .4 5 2 .0 3 3 8

TO: OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: 2022 SPRING WORKSHOP, HOTEL EXPENSE APPROVALS 

DATE: FEBRUARY 16, 2022 

During the December 3, 2022, OMA Board of Directors meeting, the Board specifically directed staff to 
draft a budget that allows for the OMA to pay for the costs associated with Board members attending its 
workshops and conferences, if the Board member’s city cannot cover said expenses.  While discussing 
this issue, the Board directed staff to put an item on the Board’s first meeting of the calendar year to 
determine which Board members, if any, need financial assistance from the OMA to attend the Spring 
Workshop.  The purpose of this agenda item is to identify which Board member’s require assistance so 
that LOC staff can move forward appropriately.   

Once Board members have indicated their level of needed assistance, the Board needs to authorize LOC 
staff to make the relevant expenditures. 

154

R e t u r n  t o  
A g e n d a



T o  c o n v e n e ,  n e t w o r k ,  t r a i n ,  a n d  e m p o w e r  M a y o r s

1 2 0 1  Cour t  S t .  NE #2 0 0  ▪  SA L EM ,  OR EG ON 9 7 3 0 1  ▪  5 0 3 .5 8 8 .6 5 5 0  ▪  1 .8 0 0 .4 5 2 .0 3 3 8

TO: OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: LOC STAFFING UPDATE 

DATE: FEBRUARY 17, 2022 

In staffing and supporting the OMA, the LOC has identified the Projects Coordinator-Affiliates position 
as the position which should serve as the OMA staff liaison.  As the Board is aware, that position has 
been vacant since June of 2021, and I have been staffing the Board during the pendency of this vacancy.   

LOC has attempted, on two separate occasions, to recruit and hire a new Projects Coordinator – 
Affiliates, both attempts were unsuccessful.  After the second failed attempt, LOC’s former Executive 
Director Mike Cully and former Operations and Member Engagement Director Christy Wurster decided 
to delay a third recruitment.  The delay was intended to provide Mr. Cully and Ms. Wurster an 
opportunity to reevaluate the Projects Coordinator-Affiliates position and decide if a different 
recruitment method was needed.  As a result of this delay, Mr. Cully advised the OMA Board of 
Directors during its December 3, 2021, meeting that he had directed me to remain the primary staff 
liaison to the OMA through the 2022 OMA Summer Conference.  Since the December 3rd OMA Board 
meeting, two additional staffing changes have occurred at the LOC.   

First, Ms. Wurster resigned her position as the Operations and Member Engagement Director on 
December 17, 2021.  Lisa Trevino, LOC’s Program Manager, was appointed by Mr. Cully to serve as 
Interim Operations and Member Engagement Director.  In appointing Ms. Trevino to the role of Interim 
Operations and Member Engagement Director, Mr. Cully asked Ms. Trevino to perform a 
comprehensive and holistic review of the entire Member Services Department, including providing 
recommendations on how the Department should be staffed and the job duties that she be performed by 
each staff person.  He directed Ms. Trevino to report back to him within 120 days with any 
recommendations she may have on how the Department should be restructured.  

Second, Mr. Cully submitted his resignation on December 21, 2021.  His resignation date is effective 
March 20, 2022; but, he has been placed on paid administrative leave by the Board of Directors and is 
effectively no longer working for or on behalf of the LOC.  With Mr. Cully’s resignation, I have been 
appointed Interim Executive Director and Jayme Hafner has been appointed Interim General Counsel.  
This means that three LOC staff persons are presently fulfilling all or portions of their normal job duties, 

155

R e t u r n  t o  
A g e n d a



while simultaneously performing the duties assigned with the interim positions they are presently 
holding.  

Within the last month I have spoken at length with Ms. Trevino about the Member and Administrative 
Services Department and the staffing needs of the LOC.  Our conversations have been thoughtful, 
effective, and have provided some direction, but the direction will not immediately impact the OMA or 
how its staffed.   

First, I will continue staffing the OMA, most likely through its summer conference in August.  The 
reality is that the LOC is significantly understaffed and has assumed more projects and responsibilities 
then I believe it can likely sustain when it is fully staffed.  There is simply no other person on the LOC 
staff who can successfully assume the responsibilities of managing the OMA, at least not without 
requiring that employee to earn excessive overtime hours, for which the LOC does not have appropriate 
budgeted funds to cover. 

Filling staff vacancies at the moment is challenging for several reasons.  A recent market comparability 
analysis has shown that nine of the current LOC positions are being paid under market to a combined 
amount of $100,000 (some positions are over $20,000 under market).  The LOC has enough funds in its 
personnel expense line for this fiscal year to rectify this market disparity, but that leaves no room for 
additional hires.  Additionally, the two most immediate staffing needs are the retention of temporary 
administrative staff  and securing another attorney.   Those two immediate staffing needs will require a 
budget amendment for the LOC.  The remaining staffing needs are expected to be filled in the next fiscal 
year when more funds become available. 

Second, the Member and Administrative Services Department has been structurally deficient for some 
time.  Mr. Cully was correct to ask Ms. Trevino to review the Department and its overall needs and I 
have requested she continue in those efforts.  The best example of the deficiencies in this Department is 
the fact that in the five and a half years I have been with the LOC, the Department has been managed by 
six different persons.  Ms. Trevino expects to finalize her analysis by the end of March, and we hope to 
coordinate with one another in April.  The plan will be present a solution to the LOC Board of Directors 
during its April 20th meeting.  Ideally we will gain clarity and direction from the Board and be poised to 
secure the needing funding in the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget so that hiring processes can begin in 
July.  Filling positions that may no longer be relevant, needed, or will exacerbate the structural 
deficiencies in the Department seems unreasonable and imprudent.   

Third, the LOC, like all other governmental and private sector entities is struggling to recruit persons to 
fill vacancies at this time.  Once the LOC has ensured its positions are market competitive, and it has 
secured funding to hire for the needed positions, LOC will reexamine its prior recruitment efforts and 
processes to identify areas for improvement. 

156



T o  c o n v e n e ,  n e t w o r k ,  t r a i n ,  a n d  e m p o w e r  M a y o r s

1 2 0 1  Cour t  S t .  NE #2 0 0  ▪  SA L EM ,  OR EG ON 9 7 3 0 1  ▪  5 0 3 .5 8 8 .6 5 5 0  ▪  1 .8 0 0 .4 5 2 .0 3 3 8

TO: OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: STUDENT CONTEST – GUIDANCE FOR STUDENTS WITH NO 
PARTICIPATING CITY 

DATE: FEBRUARY 21, 2022 

The OMA Student Contest is well underway, with local contest deadlines needing to be completed by 
April 8th so the OMA can begin its review for the statewide competition on April 9th.  Over the last 
month or so, LOC has received requests from several students, particularly students associated with 
Oregon’s Homeschooling Association, about how they can participate if they either do not live within a 
city, or their city is not participating in the program.  In the past, when these questions have arisen, 
students have been advised to locate a neighboring city as their home city so they can participate.  As the 
deadline approaches, LOC staff wishes to secure guidance from the OMA Board of Directors on how 
these types of requests should be handled.   

1. Can students who do not live within a city’s jurisdiction participate in the Student Contest?  And
if so, how does the Board see that participation occurring?

2. Can students who’s cities are not holding local contests still participate in the statewide contest?

157

R e t u r n  t o  
A g e n d a



T o  c o n v e n e ,  n e t w o r k ,  t r a i n ,  a n d  e m p o w e r  M a y o r s

1 2 0 1  Cour t  S t .  NE #2 0 0  ▪  SA L EM ,  OR EG ON 9 7 3 0 1  ▪  5 0 3 .5 8 8 .6 5 5 0  ▪  1 .8 0 0 .4 5 2 .0 3 3 8

TO: OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: FEEDBACK FOR LOC’S STRATEGIC PLANNING PROCESS 

DATE: FEBRUARY 21, 2022 

The LOC Board of Directors has hired the Coraggio Group to facilitate its strategic planning process.  
Ideally, the Board will create a four to five year strategic plan, with the hopeful adoption occurring 
sometime between August and October of 2022. 

LOC’s President, Councilor Taneea Browning of Central Point, is committed to getting as much 
feedback from LOC members as possible as to what they want to see the LOC focus on during its next 
four to five years.  In search of this feedback, the President has hosted, and will continue to host, a series 
of meetings across the state wherein she’s asked members to identify what the LOC does well and where 
the LOC has room for improvement.  Focus groups are also being convened to provide similar feedback.  

President Browning recognizes the importance that mayors play in the LOC, as well as the significance 
of the OMA.  To that end, she has asked me to seek the OMA Board’s feedback on what it hopes to see 
the LOC focus on and achieve in the next four to five years.  Additionally, if the OMA Board feels 
comfortable, she’s also asked for feedback on what the LOC does well, and where the LOC can 
improve. 

158

R e t u r n  t o  
A g e n d a


	Agenda, FINAL
	Packet, No Agenda
	B1, Board Member Orientation
	TO:
	OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	FROM:
	PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

	SUBJECT:
	BOARD MEMBER ORIENTATION

	DATE:
	FEBRUARY 21, 2022


	B2, Board Member Orientation
	C1, Minutes of December 3, 2021
	C2, 2021 Financial Review
	1b, 2021 Financial Review
	TO:
	OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	FROM:
	PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

	SUBJECT:
	2021 FINANCIAL REVIEW – BUDGET VS. ACTUALS

	DATE:
	FEBRUARY 15, 2022


	1b, 2021 Financial Review Attachment

	D, 2022 Annual Summer Conference, FINAL
	C, Annual Summer Conference, Final Packet
	3, 2022 Annual Summer Conference
	TO:
	OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	FROM:
	PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON AND LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

	SUBJECT:
	2022 ANNUAL SUMMER CONFERENCE

	DATE:
	FEBRUARY 1, 2022


	3a, Annual Summer Conference, Timeline
	3a, Annual Summer Conference, 2021 Conference Evaluation
	2021 OMA Summer Conference Evaluation Results

	3b, Annual Summer Conference, Recommendations from 2021 Conference Planning Committee
	Memo on 2021 Conference and 2022 Spring Workshop

	3c, Annual Summer Conference, Minutes of October 20, 2021 Board Meeting

	Newport

	E, Houselessness and Livability Challenges
	D, Houselessness and Livability Challenges for Cities Memo
	TO:
	OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	FROM:
	PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

	SUBJECT:
	HOUSELESSNESS & LIVABILITY CHALLENGES FOR CITIES

	DATE:
	FEBRUARY 21, 2022


	D, Houselessness and Livability Chalenges for Cities, Letter from Big Eight
	D
	D, Resolution

	F, Appointments to 2022 Committees, Packet Amended
	Lucy Vinis, Mayor of Eugene, Actual Application
	2a, Appiontments to 2022 Committees, Packet
	2a, Appointments to 2022 Committees
	TO:
	OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	FROM:
	PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

	SUBJECT:
	APPOINTMENTS TO 2022 COMMITTEES

	DATE:
	FEBRUARY 1, 2022


	Apps
	2a1, Appointments to 2022 Committees


	G, Membership Drive 2022 and 2022 Directory
	TO:
	OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	FROM:
	PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

	SUBJECT:
	MEMBERSHIP DRIVE 2022 & 2022 DIRECTORY

	DATE:
	FEBRUARY 21, 2022


	H, Responses to RFP for 2023 & 2024 Summer Conference Locations FINAL
	H, Responses to RFP for 2023 & 2024 Summer Conference Locations
	G, Responses to RFP For 2023 & 2024 Summer Conference Locations Venues
	TO:
	OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	FROM:
	PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

	SUBJECT:
	RESPONSES TO RFP FOR 2023 & 2024 SUMMER CONFERENCE LOCATIONS

	DATE:
	FEBRUARY 21, 2022


	Hood River, City's Proposal
	Hood River
	OMA Proposal 2023 and 2034
	2021 Online Conference Brochure
	2021 AV List_

	Klamath Falls

	Hermiston

	Pendleton
	I, 2022 Budget
	7a, 2022 Budget Memo
	TO:
	OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	FROM:
	PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

	SUBJECT:
	2022 BUDGET

	DATE:
	FEBRUARY 15, 2022


	Budget Narrative, Final Version Submitted to Board for Approval
	OMA 2022 Budget, Final Draft Submitted for Approval

	J, Resolution Establishing Policy Regarding Third Party Request for Information Distribution.docx
	Memo on Resolution for Third Party
	TO:
	OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	FROM:
	PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

	SUBJECT:
	RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING POLICY REGARDING THIRD PARTY REQUEST FOR INFORMATION DISTRIBUTION

	DATE:
	FEBRUARY 16, 2022


	Resolution Establishing Policy Regarding Third Party Request for Information Distribution

	K, 2022 Spring Workshop, Hotel Expense Approvals
	TO:
	OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	FROM:
	PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

	SUBJECT:
	2022 SPRING WORKSHOP, HOTEL EXPENSE APPROVALS

	DATE:
	FEBRUARY 16, 2022


	L, LOC Staffing Update
	TO:
	OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	FROM:
	PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

	SUBJECT:
	LOC STAFFING UPDATE

	DATE:
	FEBRUARY 17, 2022


	M, Student Contest, Guidance for Students with No Participating City
	TO:
	OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	FROM:
	PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

	SUBJECT:
	STUDENT CONTEST – GUIDANCE FOR STUDENTS WITH NO PARTICIPATING CITY

	DATE:
	FEBRUARY 21, 2022


	N, Feedback for LOC's Strategic Planning Process
	TO:
	OMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	FROM:
	PATTY MULVIHILL, OMA STAFF LIAISON & LOC INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

	SUBJECT:
	FEEDBACK FOR LOC’S STRATEGIC PLANNING PROCESS

	DATE:
	FEBRUARY 21, 2022







 


Eastern Oregon  
Trade and Event Center 


 
The City of Hermiston 


 


 


To Whom It May Concern: 


The City of Hermiston and the Eastern Oregon Trade and Event Center (EOTEC) respectfully submit this 
response to host the Oregon Mayor’s Association (OMA) 2024 Summer Conference on July 18 – 20, 
2024. 


RFP Requirements 


1. Mayor Dave Drotzmann is in good standing with the OMA  
2. Conference meeting space – EOTEC facilities (Please see attached sheet for more information) 


allow us to meet all of the space needs outlined in your RFP. 
3. Lodging Accommodations – The lodging facilities are not adjacent to the EOTEC facility. 


However, as attendees at this year’s LOC Spring Conference will see driving between those 
locations will not be inconvenient. 


4. Meals, Tours, Events – Two options for Event locations are a) one of two regional wineries, b) at 
the City’s wonderful outdoor aquatic center. 


5. Transportation – The City is willing to provide for any transportation needs related to all related 
off-site events. 


6. Host City Traditions – The City is willing to provide gift bags and host a Thursday evening 
welcome reception. 


Thank you for your consideration of our RFP response.  







Eastern Oregon Trade and Event Center 
The Eastern Oregon Trade & Event Center is 25,500 square feet of innovative and attractive event space. 
The facility offers a large exhibitor hall and three meeting rooms, providing a venue for meetings, 
conventions, tradeshows and banquets, as well as private gatherings.  


3 separate meeting rooms that are all equipped with their own av systems with sound damping barrier 
to keep your event inside your room. Every room has access to WIFI connectivity with a separate system 
for vendors and VIP. 


We have a full equipment commercial kitchen that makes cater an event a piece of cake or if you would 
like to prepare your own food, hire your own chef or caterer, we are ready to make your meal 
unforgettable. Comfortable tables that seat up to ten and chairs with quality linen will put the final 
touches on your event. 


Landscaped grounds are available for hosting sporting events, car shows, RV rallies, etc. There is also 
parking lot space available for motorcycle safety courses, bicycle safety courses, farm equipment shows, 
etc. 


Lush, green grounds for those attending your event that can be used for additional activities. Outdoor 
amenities include restrooms, electric and water for RV’S, food trucks and concession stands.  


Plenty of paved lighted parking and flat spaces with ample Handicapped parking is the beginning of out 
ADA compliance facility. 


EOTEC Staff is the backbone of your facility rental. In the time of covid EOTEC follows the most stringent 
of sanitizing process implementing the most effect methods of cleaning and sanitizing to stop the spread 
without intruding on your event or you participants.  


 







